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ABM JANITORIAL START-UP PLAN

. ReseONSRIE | DUEDATE | EsrAms

Coordination

Execute Contract ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 pending
Notify Incumbent NJSEA 9/21/2012 complete
Submit Certificate of Insurance ABM 9/21/2012 pending
Distribute copies/abstracts of executed agreement ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 pending
Discuss existing management personnel ABM 9/21/2012 pending
Exchange contact information ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 complete
Establish meeting frequencies, participants and format ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 complete
Review work order protocols ABM 9/28/2012

Discuss fransition as it relates to security/access ABM/NJSEA 10/5/2012

Review detailed Day 1 Plans with NJSEA ABM/NJSEA 10/12/2012

Monitor and evaluate transition and start-up ABM 10/19/2012

Modify procedures based upon feedback ABM 10/26/2012

Continue transition meetings ABM/NJSEA 11/2/2012

Meet with NJSEA to report experience ABM/NJSEA 11/9/2012

Modify process and procedures based upon meeting ABM 11/9/2012
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ABM JANITORIAL START-UP PLAN
__ RESPONSIBLE  DUEDATE  STATUS
Human Resources
Advise Local 137 of start-up date ABM 9/21/2012 pending
Indentify Union Business Agent ABM 9/21/2012 pending
Negotiate CBA with Local 137 ABM 9/21/2012 pending
Distribute employment packages ABM 9/28/2012
Establish grievances resolution protocols ABM 9/28/2012
Begin collection of new employee data ABM 10/5/2012
Conduct employee interviews ABM 10/5/2012
Conduct individual I-9 document review ABM 10/5/2012
Confirm social security data information ABM 10/5/2012
Review staffing assignments ABM 10/12/2012
Day one introduction and training of staff (video/verbal
presentation) ABM 10/19/2012
Review company policies with janitorial staff ABM 10/19/2012
Conduct safety orientation meeting ABM 10/19/2012
Review procedures and claims handling ABM 10/19/2012
Review protocols with legal department ABM 10/26/2012
Complete dues reconciliation with Local 137 ABM 10/26/2012
Complete analysis of janitorial routines ABM/NJSEA 11/2/2012
Finalize all labor reviews and allocations ABM 11/9/2012
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. RESPONSIBLE DUE DATE STATUS
Operations
Conduct property walk-through ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 complete
Meet management, establish protocols ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 complete
Develop supply inventory ABM 9/21/2012 pending
Establish access controls with security ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 pending
Survey uniforms ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 pending
Identify on-site management team ABM 9/28/2012
Review section assignments ABM 9/28/2012
Order uniforms ABM 9/28/2012
Order supplies ABM 9/28/2012
Review specifications with selected on-site management team to
develop periodic schedules ABM 10/5/2012
Review recycling program ABM/NJSEA 10/12/2012
Accept delivery of supplies ABM 10/12/2012
Conduct daily walk-throughs ABM 10/19/2012
Review inspection checklists with janitorial employees ABM 10/19/2012
Establish quality control procedures ABM 10/19/2012
Coordinate/schedule training activities ABM 10/19/2012
Coordinate Day 1 activities with on-site staff ABM 10/19/2012
Continue specification and section assignment analysis ABM 11/2/2012
Adjust routines for efficiencies ABM 11/2/2012
Conduct supply review and equipment analysis ABM 11/2/2012
Adjust periodic schedules for efficiencies ABM 11/9/2012
Continue walk-throughs to evaluate results of daily and periodic
adjustments ABM/NJSEA 11/9/2012
Meet with ail on-site personnel to evaluate quality control ABM 11/9/2012
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ABM JANITORIAL START-UP PLAN

_ RESPONSIBLE  DUEDATE  STATUS
Financial
Select/train accounting team ABM 9/21/2012 complete
Meet with NJSEA accounting group ABM/NJSEA 9/28/2012
Establish branch district ABM 9/28/2012
Input financial data ABM 9/28/2012
Create check route protocol ABM 9/28/2012
Input payroll information ABM 10/5/2012
Design invoice and reporting formats ABM 10/5/2012
Input project budget ABM 10/5/2012
Continue refining internal controls ABM 10/12/2012
Meet with NJSEA finacial team to implement
procedures ABM/NJSEA 10/12/2012
Input payroll information ABM 10/19/2012
Monitor work order process ABM 10/19/2012
Prepare invoice ABM 10/19/2012
General accounting procedure refinement ABM 11/2/2012
Evaluate payment process ABM/NJSEA 11/9/2012
Input actual revenues and expenses into
budget . ABM 11/9/2012
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. RecPonsBiE | DUEDATE  STATNS

Technology

Survey on-site technologies ABM/NJSEA 9/21/2012 pending
Identify technology equipment to order ABM 9/21/2012 pending
Order technology equipment and services ABM 9/28/2012

Program WALTER and QMS 24/7 systems ABM 10/5/2012

Integrate technology and environments ABM 10/12/2012

Set up end user accounts ABM 10/12/2012

Final system testing ABM 10/19/2012

Final installation of technology equipment ABM 10/19/2012

On-site system review ABM 10/26/2012

Monitor system operation ABM 11/2/2012

Audit technology ABM 11/9/2012




August 22, 2012 Lee Zeidman
Senior Vice President/General Manager

To Whom It May Concern:

It is with confidence that I write this letter of recommendation on behalf of ABM. STAPLES
Center is home to four professional sports franchises and over 250 events per year in downtown
Los Angeles at L.A. LIVE, and it is critical to partner with a service provider who understands
our needs and will exceed our expectations. ABM does this and much more.

ABM has provided janitorial services to STAPLES Center and Nokia Theatre L.A. LIVE since
2009. Through our Global Partnership with ABM, I clearly see their commitment to excellence
and focus on exceeding operational goals.

This was never more evident than this past May, when STAPLES Center hosted an
unprecedented weekend. The Los Angeles Kings, Lakers and Clippers were playing six playoff
games in four days—something no other arena in the country has ever had the opportunity to do.
The ABM staff truly stepped up and, because they are so familiar with our facility, anticipated
our needs and provided our guests and our facility with first rate service. Their professional staff
was able to seamlessly respond to our extremely fast turn around and massive volume of fans
with ease.

ABM is an extension of our AEG team and serves as a valuable information resource in the
janitorial and facility management industry. Their ABM Green Care program supports all of our
AEG 1EARTH global sustainability initiatives. Their management is always thorough,
courteous and professional, and their equipment is state of the art. Overall, the ABM team takes
pride in the services they offer and they spend a lot of time ensuring our facilities look
impeccable.

The high quality of work, professionalism and open communication that they provide has made
working with ABM a pleasure. I can say without reservation that, if you are considering ABM
for your janitorial services, I have no doubt they will deliver the level of service you expect and
deserve.

Sincerely,

Lee Zeidman
Senior Vice President & General Manager
STAPLES Center/Nokia Theatre/L.A. LIVE

lzeidman@staplescenter.com
STAPLES Center, 1111 SOUTH FIGUEROA STREET, SUITE 3100, Los ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90015
TEL: 213.742.7255 FAX: 213.742.7282
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ABM Response

New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
Clean/ng B/d 201 2

JERSEY SPoars ,

“NJSEA

Presented to:
George Zahn

Vice President of Purchasing and Risk Management
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
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Presented by:
ABM

Paul Savage
Regional Vice President

psavage@abm.com
212.497.0600

August 23, 2012
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Building Value for izod Center

To make a lasting impression that keeps crowds coming back year after year, NJSEA needs a customized
janitorial services program delivered by an experienced partner that knows how to create a memorable
environment while keeping costs low. To meet those needs, we'll apply our industry expertise backed by 30
years of experience serving venues like yours.

Expertise to optimize your venue

Facilities like Izod Center have specific needs that we understand. Your venue will be serviced with
specialized equipment to maximize the efficiency of large, high traffic areas. We'll make your venue more
sustainable, comfortable and inviting for your visitors, just as we do for the 4,000 events we service every
year.

Adapting to your needs

To accommodate NJSEA’s high volumes of guests, back-to-back events and seasona! venues, we'll deploy
our large labor pools and network of employees. With a wide range of facility service offerings, we are the
one-stop-shop for all of your facility needs, and when you're ready to add a service line, we'll be able put it in
place quickly. As you grow, our unmatched financial stability, operational bench strength and buying power
will make it easy for us to adapt with you.

Local experts in your community

1zod Center will be staffed by a team of local experts led by a dedicated and proactive Project Manager (PM).
Your PM will provide personalized service and be fully accountable to you for our services. Alongside your
PM, our local support team will understand the specific needs of each of your sites and continually tailor
solutions to your needs as they evolve. Our strong local presence also means we'll be able o accommodate
any emergency requests for extra resources.

Creating a memorable environment

NJSEA's guests expect to have a memorable experience, so we've made it our business to help you make a
lasting impression at your venue. Our staff will remain behind the scenes and integrate seamlessly with your
personnel so your patrons can relax and have a good time.

We encourage you to call our references listed in this proposal — other venues that are currently benefitting
from our solutions.
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ABM keeps your property — and your reputation — impeccable. We've been doing the same for other sports
and entertainment venues across the country for over 30 years. Below is a sampling of ABM's Sports and
Entertainment clients:

@

-]

AT&T Park, San Francisco Giants- San Francisco, CA
BBVA Compass Stadium — Houston, TX

Citizens Business Bank Arena — Ontario, CA

Cleveland Browns Stadium — Cleveland, OH

FedEx Field, Washington Redskins — Landover, MD

LA Live Campus — Los Angeles, CA

Mall of America Field, Minnesota Vikings — Minneapolis, MN
Massachusetts Convention Center- Boston, MA

NOKIA Theater — Los Angeles, CA

San Francisco Museum of Modern Art -- San Francisco, CA
Salvador Dali Museum- St. Petersburg, FL

Sprint Center — Kansas City, MO

STAPLES Center — Los Angeles, CA

The Grammy Museum - Los Angeles, CA

The Home Depot Center — Carson, CA

Tyson Event Center / Gateway Arena ~ Sioux City, IA
Valley View Casino Center — San Diego, CA

World Of Coca-Cola Museum — Atlanta, GA

Associations
ABM is an active member and participant in the following professional and trade organizations:

Association of Luxury Suite Directors

Green Sports Alliance

International Association of Venue Managers (IAVM)
Stadium Managers Association (SMA)

US Green Building Council (USGBC)
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Proven Partnerships

Cleveland Browns Stadium

e Capacity: 73,200

¢ Footprint: 31-acre site

e Faclility area: 1.64 million
square feet

e Janitorial and Parking
bundled solution

e Service since 2006

= ABM Green Care™
program

CLEVELAND
BROWNS

FedEx Field
Washington Redskins

e Capacity: 91,704

¢ Post-event cleaning for
each home game

Local, hands-on Project
Manager dedicated year-
round

Short, two-week transition
period

Positive press and fan
feedback for the changes
we implemented.

AEG
Staples Center & Nokia Theater

¢ Combined Capacity: 28,100

e Over 450 evenis each year

e Pre-, during and post-event
clean-up

s Single point of contact for
ail services

= Dedicated local team

o ABM Green Care™
program

I /"“ ‘V\‘

World of Coca-Cola Museum

e 62,000 square feet of guest
area

e Over 1 million guests each
year

e 1,000 Coca-Cola artifacts

e Providing cleaning services
since the re-opening of the
NEW World of Coca-Cola in
2007

e ABM Green Care™
program
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Sports and Entertainment Expertise

In order to provide the highest levels of service possible, we leverage the expertise of our subject matter
expert, Charlotte Jensen-Murphy, Vice President and Director of National Sales.

Charlotte Jensen-Murphy brings 19 years of experience in operations and
management to her role as Vice President and Director of National Sales. In

| her role, Charlotte has extensive experience in leading and aperating

B janitorial service organizations and fostering strategic refationships locaily,
regionally and nationally. Charlotte is ABM's sports and entertainment subject
matter expert, and understands the unique needs and expectations of the
market segment. Her diverse sales and marketing background combined with
operations experience leads to building trust within the industry amongst
clients and prospects. Charlotte has a significant background in integrating
janitorial services, engineering services and security guard services on
regional and national platforms. Ms. Jensen-Murphy received a Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration from Susquehanna University in
Selinsgrove, Pennsylvania with a minor in Spanish. Ms. Jensen-Murphy is
currently a Trustee on the San Diego County Employers Security Trust Fund.

Facilities We Service

Our Sports and Entertainment offerings extend beyond stadiums and arenas; we also service the following
types of facilities:

. Theaters

Hear first-hand how we build value for our clients. Below is a reference list of clients similar to you for whom
we currently provide services.
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Client Name Cleveland Browns Stadium
Location(s) Berea, OH

Square Footage 1.64 million sf

Contact Name Todd Argust

Title Director of Stadium Operations
Phone Number 440.824.3656

Contract Start Date 1999

Services Provided Janitorial and Parking

Client Name STAPLES Center

Location(s) Los Angeles, CA

Square Footage 2 million sf

Contact Name - | Sam Kropp
17‘; C ent er Title Vice President — Operations
S Phone Number 213.742.7262

Contract Start Date 2009

Services Provided Post Event Cleaning

Confidential and Froprietary
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Client Name

Mall of America Field - Metrodome

Location(s)

Minneapolis, MN

Sguare Footage

2 million sf

Coniact Name

Steve Maki

Title

Director of Facilities and Engineering

Phone Number

612.332.0386

Contract Start Date

June 2010

Services Provided

Post Event Cleaning

Client Name

FedEx Field, Washington Redskins

Location(s)

Hyattsville, MD

Square Footage

2 million sf

Contact Name

Lon Rosenberg

Title

Vice President - Operations

Phone Number

301.276.6062

Email

Rosenbergl@redskins.com

Services Provided

Janitorial
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Carrier Dome

Location(s)

Syracuse, NY

Contact Name

Pat Campbell

Title

Senior Associate Athletic Director

Phone Number

315.443.4634

Services Provided

Janitorial Services

&l and Froprietary
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We'll help you create new efficiencies to improve your bottom line

To reduce your costs and build value for your facilities, we focus on new, efficient methods and management
of labor and technology to eliminate unnecessary costs and maintain quality. Based on NJSEA’s walk-
throughs and specifications, discussions with you, and our Sports and Entertainment expertise, we
determined the best practices for you and infused them into a program designed to meet your service needs.

Prepared for: NJSEA

Location(s): 1ZOD Center
East Rutherford, NJ 07073

Service(s): Janitorial Services
Price Please see attached bid sheets
Primary Transition Contact: Frank DiBartolo, District Manager

Primary Operations Contact: Jeff Wasserman, Project Manager

Confidential ang P
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NJSEA will receive personalized service that emphasizes client satisfaction. Through our organizational
structure, leadership and consistent management, we've developed an approach that atlows us to manage
your venue’s service needs and exceed your expectations.

NJSEA will benefit from our industry experts and local specialists in recruitrees, operations, account
management, quality assurance, safety, risk management, training and technical support. Al are
focused on delivering quality, reliable service with the latest technology to continuaily meet your unigue
needs.

Descriptions of service personnel's roles and responsibilities that will directly support your account are listed
here to provide you clarification of what should be expected from each.

A Venue Manager Who Fits Your Needs

We'll provide NJSEA with a Venue Manager who will be dedicated to your venue year-round. The Venue
Manager will be an extension of your onsite team, working to coordinate ABM's service to meet your
operational needs. You'll benefit from the
Venue Manager's flexibility, availability, and
strong organizational, team-building and
communication skills, all of which will be crucial
to managing our service delivery.

( New lJersey Sports and Exposition Author ity w
i

e rhegs Operations S ort
Responsibilities perations Supp

Sets goals and objectives for the region

e Assists and directs implementation of

service.
Attends production meetings.
Performs site walks and inspections.

Organizes and plans ABM's
operations.

Ensures staffing levels are appropriate.

Trains, when necessary, from
management through service worker.

Works closely with other vendors and
departments to coordinate our
services.

Reports property management issues
and responds if necessary.

Manages contractual compliance.

Implements operational improvement strategies
Ensures the region’s and district's compliance with
company policies and government regulations,

Hires and trains employees

Plans, assigns and directs work performance
Subcontractor selection, if applicable

Perform site inspections and monitors compliance
Analyses reports, identifies trends and develops a plan to
correct problerns.

Oversees local inspections, quality control measures and
inventory for the assigned buildings

Manages safety programs and conducts monthly safety
meetings

Oversees local inspections, quality control measures and
inventory control of equipment and supplies for the
assigned location(s)

Organize and control local area activities

Carries out day-to-day operations
Conducts on-site training
Serves as immediate, on-site contact

Directs work activities
Manages service workers
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Northeast Region Profile

We have local resources to serve you, and to respond to your
on-demand needs. ABM will provide you with the knowledge
and manpower when, and where you need it.

Regional Office information:

321 W 44" gt

New York, NY 10036
Telephone: 212.497.0600
Fax: 212.497.0690

Square Footage Cleaned: 824 million sf
Number of Employees: 18,369
Number of Customers: 3,611

Annual Sales: $824.7 million

Branch Offices (City / State)

Danbury, CT Hartford, CT Wiimington, DE
Somerville, MA Baltimore, MD Kenilworth, NJ

East Syracuse, NY Hicksville, NY New York, NY

Tonawanda, NY Waterford, NY Bethlehem, PA
King of Prussia, PA Philadelphia, PA Pittsburgh, PA

Alexandria, VA Charlottesvilie, VA Norfolk, VA

Richmond, VA
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We have local resources to serve you, and to respond to your on-demand needs. Our New Jersey regional
office is staffed by a team of professionals dedicated to supporting our on-site staff and ensuring the delivery
of a first class janitorial program.

Branch Office information:

708 West Colfax Avenue, Suite B
Kenilworth, NJ 07033

Telephone: 908.259.3444

Fax: 908.259.3440

Square footage cleaned: 30 million sf
Number of employees: 2,590
Number of clients: 205

Annual sales: $70 million
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Support Structure Tailored For You

Your services will be supported by a team of experts knowledgeable in janitorial services and your local area.
They are empowered with specialized training and innovative technology to deliver value, improve efficiency
and take ownership of the services we provide you with.

Alan Marquesano

Northeast

N

Scott Salmirs i
Executive Vice President
Northeast
i
| l
( Martin Gjelaj \ (
Senior Vice President - =~ -1 Regional Vice President
Northeast {\
Paul Savage

Regional Vice President

Steve Buschbacher
Senior Branch Manager i
o

(
(

I

( Marjorrie Lopez
{ Office Manager

]

Delany Avendano
Branch Administrator

”

Michelle Roque
Branch Administrator

(

\‘E

j

-,

Andrea Chaney
District Manager

Elgar Quijandria
District Manager

(

P "‘\\

Frank DiBartolo
District Manager

I

|

l

(

Gloria Zayas
ield Operations Manager

Jose Ormeno Artie Freudenberg

Elsie Ramirez

Field Operations Manager}} Field Operations Manager J ( Field Operations Manage}
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On-Site Support Structure

The Izod Center and Meadowlands Site will be supported by a team of experts knowledgeable in janitorial
services and window cleaning.

: Paul Savage
{ Regional Vice President

e,

( Steve Buschbacher
Senior Branch Manager

.

. N
Frank DiBartolo
District Manager )

i

Elsie Ramirez i
Field Operations Manager /f

o

~
Jeff Wasserman
\ Project Manager

\\

Administrative ;
Assistant j

i i

Cleaning W Cleaning Supervisor
Supervisor ] (per diem)

", o

Confidential and F
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Service Personnel Resumes

Below are resumes for the key personnel proposed to support the project outlined in this request for proposal.
If you need further information, please contact your ABM representative.

Steve Buschbacher

Regional Manager

Skills Summary ,

Steve Buschbacher is the Regional Manager for all ABM service locations throughout the New Jersey
region. He has been in the janitorial industry with for 14 years. Steve manages over 2,500 employees
performing services that cover over 30 million square feet throughout New Jersey

Mr. Buschbacher’s responsibilities include maintaining customer relations, quality control, capturing new
business and all aspects of P&L reporting for New Jersey. Mr. Buschbacher obtained his Bachelor's of
Science Degree in Accounting from Manhattan College.

Frank DiBartolo

District Manager

Skills Summary

Frank DiBartolo is a District Manager for ABM in the Northern New Jersey area and has been in the janitorial
industry for 16 years. In this role, he is responsible for managing the daily janitorial operations for over 20
locations.

As a District Manager, Frank manages approximately 25 project management professionals and works
directly with clients to ensure their total satisfaction. He responsible for ensuring the delivery of a first class
janitorial program. Frank is also responsible for the training and development of the janitorial staff as well as
ensuring that the facilities are safety compliant.

dential and Proprietary
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Cleaning Program

Our cleaning staff will be a flexible team that can adapt its procedures and processes for different kinds of
events and make considerations for the unexpected, like last-minute charzges and weather. Our cleaning
services include the following:

Pre-, During and Post-Event Cleaning
Pressure Washing

Concrete Sealing

Carpet and Floor Care

Seat Cleaning

Changeover Crews

Parking Lot Cleaning

Off-Season Services

If you require deep cleaning or detailing during the off-season, we provide a range of services to
accommodate those needs:

Seat detailing

Carpet shampooing
Luxury/Executive Suites detailing
Concourse stripping and resealing
Duct cleaning

Vent vacuuming

Confidential and Proprietary
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Improving Service Levels through New Approaches to Cleaning

To meet NJSEA's need for cost-saving, high-quality service, we employ new approaches to cleaning.
Because of these approaches, we're able to defiver superior results and increased productivity, while
promoting a safer and healthier environment for your venue. We clean more than 2 billion square feet of floor
space every day, so our methods are based on proven resuls. '

Our cleaning approaches combine daily, variable and extensive periodic services to perform to your
expectations. We offer a full spectrum of care and as your business operations evolve, we also provide a
progressive collection of additional methods and equipment to continually meet your needs. You'll find our
extensive selection of services to be rare in the facility services industry.

al and Proprietary
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The ABM Green Care™ program focuses on products, tools,
equipment, processes and policies. Our program promotes a healthier
environment for your building’s occupants while significantly reducing
the harm done to the environment. Green cleaning also preserves yous
capital investments {floors, fumniture, etc.) because green products are
less harsh than traditional products. We use environmentally preferable
products and sustainable procedures following the requirements of the
U.S. Green Building Council, Green Seal, Environmental Protection
Agency, Environmental Choice, and the Carpet and Rug Institute, who
provide nationally recognized standards for green products and
procedures. Our program is overseen by Alan France, our dedicated
Sustainability Director. He is supported by LEED APs and Green Associates located throughout the country.

A Flexible Program to Meet Your Sustainability Goals

We've made the program flexible by offering three distinct levels. We'll help you take a more holistic approach
to green cleaning, whether it's switching to green cleaning products, implementing sustainable equipment and
processes or assisting with LEED certification. We'll use our Assessment and Transition Plan Tool to assess
your existing sustainability efforts and develop pricing and a transition plan to implement green cleaning.

Cost Neutral %a@a@a«eaaﬂ&w&@masezaaas&aaﬂwaem@e&e@a% Added Cosig®

" Added costs can be mitigated through hard-savings (1.e. waste disposal costs, energy savings assoclated
with day cleaning) as well as soft savings realized through smployee productivity galns and health benefits
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It's an easy shift

Your transition process will be painless because we identify your service needs, select the appropriate
personnel, create a detailed implementation plan, and communicate it to everyone involved. Our teams will
work to create a smooth start-up, free from time-consuming disruptions. - :

Estimated Timeframe

Our service start-up plan customarily takes place during a four- to six-week period and typically starts within
thirty days of an award.

Importance of ongoing communication

In our years of experience, we've learned that the key to a successful transition is clear, ongoing
communication of expectations, objectives and outcomes with all parties involved, particularly with
management at all levels on both sides.

From the beginning, ABM will hold regular meetings with you to discuss all phases of the transition, identify
best practices and implement them, as needed. We will survey everyone on your staff who will be affected by
the transition in order to address key concerns.

Support and coordination

A start-up team will work with NJSEA's designated Project Manager to implement the transition plan. The
team will remain dedicated until your planned level of service is achieved and your objectives are being met.

Confidential and Proprietary
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Start-Up Plan

Below is an example of a start-up plan, showing how ABM becomes an integrated part of your workflow. As
we move forward, we will provide a more detailed and customized plan. Once the plan is finalized, we
complete your transition timetable, identifying each task, who owns it and its expected completion date.

Task . Week 4 Week 3 ) Week 2 ) Week 1 _ PostStartUp

Kick-off meeting - transition team

Assign roles & responsibilities

Finalize and review contract ard specifications
Review current situation with incumbent
Create stakeholder register

5  Activities & Discussion Topics -
Transition plan and timeline
Client involvement in fransition process
Reporting requirements
Special facifity needs and considerations
Waste management and recycling procedures
Uniform requirements
Develop and document schedules

e s s e

= Assign management team and review current personnel

- Conduct interviews, background checks & drug testing (as applicable)
» Setup time recording and payroll procedures

= Complete training

» Distribute uniforms and badges to employees

« Site location verification
- ldentify and document janitor closets
« Location access - receipt of keys and/ or alarm codes

» Determine equipment/supply needs & procurement process

+ Order equipment, supplies and communication devices

« Set up equipment, supplies, communication devices, and inventory control
processes

Review billing and accounting requirements & set up procedures
Test procedures

Communicate customer requirements to Quality Contro! Implementation team
Problem resolution and escalation procedures

Develop Quality Control program (inspections, surveys & KPlIs)

Train field/customer on communication devices, work order system & QMS
inspection systems

tanagement Program

Define overall process & call center interaction
Upload periodic task schedule into QMS WO Management System

+ Order and distribute customer & landlord COls

ent (if applicable)

+ Review sites and areas to self perform and where to subcontract
+ Review selection of subcontractors and hire as necessary

- identify outstanding tasks & verify completion of all transition tasks

» Confirm start ups and review transition issues & successes
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Billing

You'i be presented with a variety of flexible billing options. Depending on your needs and contractual
requirements, your billing will be administered either out of a local branch or our national office. We have
established an internal goal of 100% accuracy the first time, however, if a problem should occur, ABM will
resolve all invoice issuss as quickly as possible. ‘

Your invoices can be delivered electronically or in hard copy format. Should you desire consolidated billing for
all your ABM services, we can easily handle this, giving you;

e Fewer invoices and less paperwork, saving time and money

o Better money management because work is billed routinely and accurately
¢ Better review and control of budgets A

e No additional cost for the customization of your billing

Reporting

Moreover, our goal is to provide you with timely, relevant information. We will customize reports to meet your
requirements and fit your format. You can view these reports online or receive them in hard copy. We will
provide reports weekly, monthly, quarterly and annually with a roll-up of the information to illustrate year-to-
date performance. We can provide report recommendations, however, the format of the report and the
frequency are up to you.

Examples of standard reports we can provide include:
e Total Spend

e Additional Service Detail
o Work Order Status v e 1 o R
e Work Order Priority CHIENT BASHBOARD ABRA.

ity Vriom

e Response Time
p Worn Cranes by Prordy Addtiona! Services Celail

Shed BN g gty £ e gy

o Inspection Results
o Timekeeping
e Training and Safety
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Building Value

Uupplies ana

&
4 &

Quality and efficiency at lower costs

The quality of the service that you'll receive is enhanced by our commitment to providing the best defivery,
setvice and employee training on the equipment, supplies and chemicais we use. You save money because
we use superior products and methods, requiring fewer man hours.

NJSEA will enjoy the cost and quality advantages of ABM's purchasing power because of the large volume of
business we do and our strong, established relationships with industry-leading supply, chemical and raw
material manufacturers that share our commitment to excellence. This affords us cost-control advantages
over our competitors and provides you with several distinct advantages:

e Best quality products available at the best possible prices

e Cost control due to our ability to negotiate long-term, fixed-price contracts with our suppliers
e  Access to new products and concepts that save time while increasing productivity

o Personal attention when it comes to problem solving for you and managers

e Prompt deliveries and comprehensive training
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Building Value

Supplies

ABM selects supplies based on our quality standards, and the product’s overall ability to meet the rigorous
requirements established for your venue. We have a range of products to suit your environment that will
maintain maximum efficiency, safety and hygiene. We can tailor product selection as needed to best suit your
requirements and offer you a complete solution.

Chemicals :

By aligning environmental issues with key business goals, our chemical cleaning program is not only good for
the environment—it's good for your venue. We consider environmental impact, worker safety and product
perfofmance when selecting cleaning products. The chemicals we use are premixed by the manufacturer
which eliminates the possibility of improper dilution of cleaning. Also, having fewer types of chemicals on-site
reduces the risk of property damage, and the packaging of our various types of chemicals helps you and the
service workers easily identify improper chemical usage.

Our chemical cleaning program benefits you in several ways:

e Cleaner, healthier environment for occupants and visitors to your facility.
e Improved indoor air quality

e Reduced possibility of property damage due to improper use of chemicals
o Possibility of reduced liability insurance premiums for your facility

ABM advocates consistency at all of our clients’ locations by establishing:

e Standardized packaging and dilution ratios
e Optimal choices of products for each cleaning application
e Uniform training on product use

e Simplified HazCom programs

Lordidential and Proprietary
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Building Value

People in your venue will always be able to recognize the janitorial services staff because they'll proudly be
wearing either the ABM uniform or a special uniform chosen to reflect the character of your venue. The
professional image of our service employees is just one more way ABM works to enhance the overall image
of your venue. We understand that establishing an identity and presenz:e at yowr sites is imperative as
security has bacome heightened in recent years.

The power of a uniform doesn’t stop there. It also gives our service employees a greater sense of
responsibility and accountability. They are required to keep their uniforms looking clean and presentable.

Our agreement with vendors enables us to provide you with an array of well-made, high-quality apparel to
choose from.

Confidential ane

't Proprietary




ABM.

Building Value

Our promise to you is fulfilled by our people. Your expectations need to be met by employees who are willing
and able to give their best, every day—which ABM's employees have demonstrated consistently.

We attract, select and retain employees who will exemplify our core values—respect, integrity, collaboration,
innovation and excellence—at every job site. We hire superior employees from diverse backgrounds, give
them thorough training, encourage them to be accountabie for their work and reward them for exceplional
performance.
With well-managed people in the right jobs, NJSEA benefits in many ways:

¢ Higher quality service

e Increased productivity and reliability

e Professional interaction with guests

* Reduced turnover, resulting in more familiar faces and more consistent service

o Lower costs as a result of a safer workplace

Attract and Recruit

Recruiting the best
Your facilities will be staffed by highly qualified professionals who were attracted to ABM because of our
strong reputation for employee development and retention.

Your venue requires personnel who are able to adapt to your culture and present themselves in a friendly,
professional manner. That is why we make great efforts to recruit employees who don’t just match the job
profile, but also will adapt to meet your facility's needs and ABM's culture of learning, teamwork and providing
high-quality service.

Screen and Select

Careful selection to ensure safety and quality

Through professional interviewing and selection processes, we select quality candidates who meet your
needs. To ensure the safety of your customers, employees and business assets, we provide a range of
employee screening packages. We will conduct tiered screening based on your industry’s best practices and
your business’ requirements.

st oyprd Dyt mbesg
al anc Progrietar 12
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Building Value

Our screening packages can include any of the following:

e Standard background checks e Drug screening (upon contract
. requirement)
e Criminal/sex offender background checks
{CORI/SORI) e Professional certification checks
e  Credit checks s Additional reference checks

Train and Deavelop
An emphasis on safety and training
To deliver you the reliable, high-quality service that you expect, we develop training programs at the national

and regional level, and emphasize best practices and safety. For more detailed information, see the section
titled “Training Program” in this proposal.

Retain

Employee benefits and incentives attract and keep good people

Maintaining a broad, competitive benefits program enables us to keep well-trained, experienced employees
who are committed to your venue and ABM. We provide you with the flexibility to personalize a benefit
package that meets your cost objectives while still achieving a work/life balance for the employees.

Grow

Encouraging professional growth

Another component of our retention program is the support we provide to employees as they grow in their
careers. Your venue will be serviced by employees who are allowed to grow, which typically results in higher
productivity and better service quality. Our culture encourages each employee to openly communicate with
his or her manager to develop a career path that builds on individual strengths. The quality of each individual
employee’s service continually improves because of the ongoing coaching facilitated by regular performance
reviews.

nd Proprietary
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Building Value

We provide you with employees that have the training they need to successfully perform janitorial services in
your venue, improve efficiency, and develop new skills. Every ABM employee meets the following criteria:

e Technically proficient with chemicals, equipment and methods
« Familiar with the rules and regulations of your site(s)

« Understands the stadium and venue environment

e Thoroughly trained in job safety

e Committed to providing outstanding client service

New Hire Orientation and Training

During the start-up phase, our Venue Managers and Supervisors conduct employee training sessions at one
of your locations in a classroom setting. These sessions include site-specific rules and regulations, ABM
policies and procedures and basic job training.

Training for service workers concentrates on specific work tasks. Our Supervisors demonstrate each task
step-by-step, detailing the importance of each step along the way, and train them to perform visual
inspections before completing work. The Supervisors also provide guidance to the service workers as they
work.

Once initial training is complete, Supervisors perform recurring reviews to make sure that they are maintaining
NJSEA and ABM's standards. By empowering our employees with comprehensive training, we are able to
minimize deficiencies and quickly identify opportunities for improvement.

Recurrent Training Sessions

Our managers conduct recurrent training sessions for
current and replacement employees at your site(s).
These sessions are more technical in nature and
concentrate on specific job tasks and duties, such as
specialized certifications and interdisciplinary training.
Employees are trained in groups specific to their
function. Compliance is measured and tracked by
attendance, job performance, tests, etc. to ensure all
employees are receiving the proper level of training.

o
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Building Value
Training Schedule

JAN | FEB | MAR | APR | MAY | JUN | JUL | AUG | SEP | OCT | NOV | DEC
Safety o e @ ® ® & ® ® ® @ ® @
& Social Sensitivity ® * @ ®
F% Cleaning Methods @ & & %
ig Hospitality ® & @ @ ® & & @ ® @ & @
& Operating Procedures | © ® g @
Operating Procedures d ® ® e
Equipment e e e ® @ ® e ® ® e ® ®

@ Initial Training
@ Ongoing Training
@ Refresher Training

We Represent You

Every member of our staff understands that, when guests are at the IZOD Center, they don't distinguish
between NJSEA's staff and ours. Our service workers will fully comply with your standards for personal
appearance and guest relations, and will attend any training sessions you hold that emphasize customer
service and etiquette. Every ABM employee in your venue will understand that, as long as they are at your
venue, they represent both you and ABM, and will treat your guests with the same courtesy that you expect
from your employees.
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Building Value

We've established a quality culture that focuses on
client satisfaction, involves employees, measures
performance, and is continuously improving. To
support your quality goals and requirements, we use a
unifying quality management system that places a
variety of processes into a single framework. This
framework acts as a starting point from which NJSEA
and ABM will customize a quality program for your
venue. The program will improve efficiencies and allow
for greater transparency into your account activity.

Your account will be managed with innovative
technology tools that improve communication, increase
worker productivity and integrate processes to
measure results. Your ABM Project Manager and
service workers will be utilizing laptops, tablets or other
wireless devices for data entry and communication.
The staff servicing your venue will be more
dependable because of the efficiency and
transparency of our systems.

Benefits You’ll Receive:

e Automated communication, resulting in reduced response time

e Complete, up-to-date work order status

¢ Round-the-clock access, communication and tracking

e Periodic scheduling and tracking

o Customized inspection and work order reports providing data for process improvement
e Improved client satisfaction

e Less time spent managing issues

sl and F
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Building Value

Quality Management System

ABM's quality management tool is our proprietary, web-based control system that supports your quality goals
and requirements. The system allows both NJSEA and ABM to view inspection resuits, work order statuses,
periodic maintenance schedules, and reports through a central online portal. ABM focuses on:

e Analyzing inspection results

e Automating work order management

¢ Establishing and tracking accountability
o  Continually improving processes

Tracking Accountability

In order to provide you with transparent accountability, all work requests will clearly define who is responsible
for the work and the time involved for completion. The requests will be time stamped, and automatic
escalations are triggered by that time, notifying management. You will have the opportunity to measure,
quantify and analyze service delivery, alongside ABM management. This process makes it easy fo identify
and disseminate best practices.

As work is accomplished and work orders are closed, the reporting system is updated. Supervisory personnel
will follow up with service workers on issues and requests to make certain all work is completed to our high
standards. Any problems that emerge from this follow-up are immediately corrected and the communication
loop is then closed—but only when our clients are absolutely satisfied.

Your facilities will be inspected on a regular schedule, and the data is entered into the system via a wireless
device, allowing for real-time access to inspection results. During inspection, tasks are rated on a scale from
one to five, producing a percentage of the maximum possible. The total for all tasks during that inspection
becomes the quality score for the site(s). Customized quality control inspection reports, showing results and
trends will be accessible online or via an Excel spreadsheet. This information allows our managers to
determine what actions are necessary to maintain compliance, continuous improvement, and ultimately, your
satisfaction.

Process Improvement

We optimize our processes to achieve more efficient results for you through planning, standardization,
employee engagement and other means. We continuously look to identify areas of opportunity and target any
problem areas, formulate a detailed strategy, and promptly execute the solution. When we engage in a
proactive process improvement strategy, we are able to build upon our foundation of best practices,
procedures and processes so you receive the best service. Our quality management system helps us identify
where to focus our efforts.




BUlldmg Value

We provide commercial cleaning and maintenance, facility engineering, energy efficiency, parking and
security services for sites of all sizes in the United States and abroad. With fiscal 2011 revenues of $4.2
billion, nearly 100,000 employees and 350 office locations, we build value for our clients wnth our stand-alone

and integrated service solutions.

Highlights
$4.2 billion in annual sales

350 branch offices in the United States, Puerto
Rico and British Columbia, Canada

Nearly 100,000 service employees
ABM Green Care™ Program
D&B rating of 5A2

Solutions

Electrical

Energy

HVAC and Mechanical
Janitorial

Landscape and Grounds
Maintenance and Repair

Parking and Transportation
Security

Expansive technology platform
Founded in 1909

ISO 9000 compliant for quality and reliability

Over 25,000 clients
Public Corporation (NYSE: ABM)
Sarbanes Oxley Compliant (SOX)

Industries We Serve
Aviation and Transportation
Banking and Financial Services
BioPharma

Commercial Buildings
Education

Golf Courses

Government

Healthcare

High-Tech

Hospitality

Improvement Districts
Industrial and Manufacturing
Residential

Retail

Sports and Entertainment

inid Proprietary
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Building Value
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ABM's branch offices are strategically placed to provide experienced local management, reliable supervision
and a sustainable, highly skilled service team that will deliver personalized service.

Puerto Rico British Colu
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Building Value

Should your facility needs expand, we have a wide range of services to meet your needs.

Security
e Eventand on-site, 24-7 security

«  Uniformed, anmed and unarmed security personnel
«  Access / crowd control

e Ushers and ticket takers

Energy
e Energy reduction specialist

e Energy retrofits
e  Equipment preventative maintenance plans

o Feasibility analysis and rebate application

Parking
e Parking services and management

e  Shuttle transportation services
e Event parking management
e Valet parking and fee collection

HVAC
e HVAC technicians

e Electrical and plumbing service
e  Carpentry, locksmith service

e Stationary and route engineers

Landscaping and Grounds
e Grounds maintenance

e Athletic field maintenance

e  Grounds keeping personnel

e Irrigation systems
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Building Value

ABM Janitorial At A Glance
$2.3 billion in revenues (FY2011)
113 offices nationwide
67,000 employees
1111 Fannin Street
Suite 1500
Houston, TX, 77072
Started in 1909
Parent Corporation ABM Industries (NYSE:ABM)

WEST

Northeast

: PAichvest
; ﬂ South Central
&

Brizish Colursbia PuertoRico Branch Location

Alaska
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Building Value

ABM provides solutions that lower your operating costs, preserve your assets and maximize their value. We
focus on these core areas in order to deliver the best service possible:

Sarvice Excellence

Wiith our highly-trained, in-house workforce, you can trust that we'll provide you with services that increase
efficiencies and lower your operating expenses—ail while maintaining a uniform standard of service
excellence.

Breadth of Services

We'll provide you with an unrivaled range of facilities solutions that will keep your properties safe, clean,
comfortable and energy efficient.

Deep Industry Expertise

From our national office to our local branches, we've made sure our workforce understands your industry.
After all, in over 100 years' of service, we've developed the expertise to make our solutions work best for you.

Technology-Enabled Workforce

Your facilities will be serviced with the support of innovative technology solutions that will simplify service
delivery and allow for greater transparency.

Guaranteed Sustainability Solutions

We've got expertise to support all of your sustainability goals, including green cleaning, LEED support,
bundled energy solutions, and more.

We Are Ready to Build Value For NJSEA.




Jeffrey S. Wasserman

55 Auryansen Court, Closter, New Jersey 07624
Email: jeffrey.wasserman@abm.com Phone: 201-694-8518

EXPERIENCE

ABM Janitorial Services, Inc. September 2009 — Present
Project Manager — East Hanover, New Jersey

*  Work with building management and numerous employees

© Manage cleaning staff at Novartis Pharmaceuticals Corporation :

Perform daily inspections of building to ensure completion of service level agreements
Maintain client cleaning budget consisting of monthly and additional sexvices
Compile and analyze annual PMON Custodial Benchmarking Metrics
Prepare spreadsheets for analysis of Novartis projects as per client request

00O

ABM Janitorial Services, Inc. June 2009 — September 2009
Supervisor — New York, New York
»  Worked with building management and numerous employees
o Managed over 25 employees in Merrill Lynch Building at 4 WFC
o Worked with building management to resolve tenant issues
o Created daily budgets and managed payroll for over 50 employees
o Performed nightly inspections of building to ensure client satisfaction

Allied Irish Banks May 2008 — August 2008
Corporate Banking Analyst - New York, New York
Corporate Banking North America — Energy and Infrastructure Team
= Worked directly with EVP Energy and Infrastructure as well as various team members

o Computed price floor for oil using data from various companies
o Assisted in working with financial models in various deals
o Performed analyses of power companies that were operating while unprofitable
o Created spreadsheets to compare original metrics to current metrics of deals in portfolio

EDUCATION

Pennsylvania State University Graduated May 2009
B.S. Finance from the Smeal College of Business
= Dean’s List—Spring Semester 2006
GPA through Spring Semester 2009: 3.23 out of a possible 4.00

Related Courses: Management and Organization, Intermediate Accounting, Intermediate Economics,
Financial Management of Business Enterprise, Advanced Financial Management, Real Estate

Financial Analysis, Business Law, Business Ethics

SKILLS

Proficient in the following computer applications
Microsoft Office (Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Outlook, Access), Blueforce, SAP, Lotus Notes
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-TEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
ABM Iindustries Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ABM Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries (“the Company”)
as of October 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehansive
income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 31, 2011. in connection with our audits of the
consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the related financial statement Scheduie . We have aise audited the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Controf —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0). The
Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, the related financial statement Schedule I, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Contral Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement Schedule I
and an opinion on the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
Jt financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
ABM Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 31, 2011 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Also in
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Jur opinion, the related financial statement Schedule Il, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein. Also in our opinion, ABM Industries
Incorporated and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
October 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

/s{ KPMG LLP

New Yaork, New York
December 23, 2011
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ABM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

October 31,
(in thousands, except share amounts) 2011 2010
ASSETS
Current assests
Cash and cash equivalents $ 26467 § 39,446
Trade accounts receivable, net of aliowances of $13,485 and $10,672 at October 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively 552,098 450,513
Prepaid income taxes 7,205 1,498
Current assets of discontinued operations 1,992 4,260
Prepaid expenses 41,823 41,3086
Notes receivable and other 52,756 20,402
Deferred income taxes, net 40,565 46,193
Insurance recoverables 10,851 5,138
Total current assets 733,757 608,756
Non-current assets of discontinued operations 216 1,392
Insurance deposits 35,974 36,164
Other investments and long-term receivables 5,798 4,445
Defetred income taxes, net 30,948 51,068
Insurance recoverables 59,759 70,960
Other assets 43,178 37,869
investments in auction rate securities 15,670 20,171
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates, net 14,423 —
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $97,819 and $98,884 at
October 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively 60,009 58,088
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $78,669 and $54,889 at October 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively 128,994 65,774
soodwill 750,872 593,983
Total assets $1,879,598 $1,548,670
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\BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensation
Taxes - other than income
Insurance claims
Other
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities

Income taxes payable

Line of credit

Retirement plans and other
Insurance claims

Total liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 500,000 shares authorized; none issued
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 53,333,071 and 52,635,343
shares issued and outstanding at October 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes

Retained earnings
Total stockholders' equity

otal liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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$ 130,464 $ 78,928
112,233 89,063
19,144 17,663
78,828 77,101
102,220 70,119
307 977
443,196 333,851
38,236 29,455
300,000 140,500
39,707 34,626
262573  271.213
1,083,712 809,645
533 526
211,389 192,418
(2,661) (1,863)
586,625 547,944
795,886 739,025

$1,879,598 $1,548,670
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\BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ended October 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues
Expenses
Operating
Selling, general and administrative
Amaortizadion of intangible assets
Total expenses
Operating profit

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on auction rate security:

Gross impairment losses
Impairments recognized in other comprehensive income
income from unconsolidated affiliates, net
Interest expense
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued Operations
{Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Net income

Net income per common share—Basic
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net income

Net income per common share—Diluted
income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net Income

Weighted-average common and common equivalent shares outstanding

Basic
Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

2011 2010 2009
$4,246,842 $3,495,747 $3,481,823
3,781,264 3,134,018 3,114,699

324,762 241526 263,633

23,248 11,364 11,384
4,129,274 3,386,908 3,389,716

117,568 108,839 92,107

— — (3,695)
— (127) 2,129
3,915 — —

(15,805) (4,639) (5,881)

105,678 104,073 84,660

(36,980) _ (40,208) _ (29,170)

68,698 63,870 55,490

(194) 251 (1,197)
$ 68504 $ 64,121 $ 54,203
$ 129 $ 123 § 1.08
— — (0.02)
$ 129 §$ 123 § 1.06
$ 127 §$ 121§ 1.07
— — (0.02)
$ 127 § 121 § 1.05

53,121 52,117 51,373

54,103 52,908 51,845
$ 056 $ 054 $ 052

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ABM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{in thousands}
Balance October 31, 2008

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized gain on auction
rate securities, net of
taxes of $203
Reclass adjustment for credit
losses recognized in
earnings, net of taxes of
$636
Foreign currency translation,
net of taxes of $241
Actuarial loss—Adjustments
to pension and other
post-retirement benefit
plans, net of taxes of
$139
Unrealized loss on interest
rate swaps, net of taxes
of $412
Comprehensive income
Dividends:
Common stock
Tax effect from exercise of stock
options
Stock issued under employees’
stock purchase and option plans
Share-based compensation expense
Treasury stock retirement
Balance October 31, 2009
‘omprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized gain on auction
rate securities, net of
taxes of $179
Reclass adjustment for credit
losses recognized in
earnings, net of taxes of
$53
Foreign currency transiation
Actuarial loss—Adjustments
to pension and other
post-retirement benefit
plans, net of taxes of
$108
Unrealized gain on interest
rate swaps, net of taxes
of $230
Comprehensive income
Dividends:
Common stock
Tax effect from exercise of stock
options
Stock issued under employees’
stock purchase and option plans
Share-based compensation expense
Balance October 31, 2010

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Treasury Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Total

57,992 $ 581 (7,028} § (122,338) & 284,094 % {3,422) $ 485,136 § 644,051
— — —— — — — 54293 54,293
—_ — — — — 297 — 297
—— — — —_ — 930 — 930
— — — — — 577 — 577
— —_ — — — (203) —_ (203)
— — — — - (602) (602)
— — — — — — — 55,292
— — — — — e (26,727) (26,727)
— — — —_ (1,314) — —_ (1,314)
724 6 — — 8,557 — (226) 8,337
_ — — — 7,411 — — 7,411

(7,028) {70} 7,028 122,338 (122,268) — — —

51,688 517 — % -  $ 176,480 $ (2,423) $ 512,476 $ 687,050
— — — — — — 64,121 64,121
— —_— — — - 461 — 461
— —— — — — 74 — 74
— — — — — 68 —_ 68
— — — — — (381) — (381)
- — — — — 338 — 338
— — — — —_ —_ — 64,681
— — — — — — (28,152) (28,152)
— — — — 383 — — 383
947 9 — —_ 11,484 — (501) 10,992
— — — — 4,071 — — 4,071

52,635 $ 526 -  $ — 3 192,418 § (1,863) $ 547,944 $ 739,025
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\BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(continued)

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Unrealized gain on auction
rate securities, net of taxes
of $193
Net unrealized gain an mtevest
rate swaps, et of taxes of
$76
Actuarial loss - Adjustments to
pension and other post-
retirementbenefit plans,
net of taxes of $996
Comprehensive income
Dividends:
Common stock
Tax effect from exercise of stock
options
Stock issued under employees' stock
purchase and option plans
Share-based compensation expense

Balance Qctober 31, 2011

(467)
698 7 - -

10,247
9,191

214
308

115

(1,433)

68,504 68,504
— 214

—_ 306

- 115

— (1,433) .

67,706
(29,744) (29,744)
— (487)

(79) 10,175
— 9,191

53,333 § 533 § -~ $ —~_ % 211,389 §

(2,661) §

586,625 $795.886

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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\BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended October 31,
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Income from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations 1o net cash provided

by continuing operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets
Deferred income taxes
Share-based compensation expense
Provision for bad debt
Discount accretion on insurance claims
Auction rate security credit loss impairment
Gain on sale of assets
Income from unconsolidated affiliates, net
Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Trade accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Insurance recoverables
Other assets and long-term receivables
Income taxes payable
Retirement plans and other non-current liabilities
Insurance claims :
Trade accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
‘otal adjustments
Net cash provided by continuing operating activities
Net cash provided by discontinued operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of assets and other
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Proceeds from sale of auction rate securities
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from exercises of stock options (including income tax benefit)
Dividends paid

Deferred financing costs paid

Borrowings from line of credit

Repayment of borrowings from line of credit

Changes in book cash overdraft

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

48

2011 2010 2009
$ 68504 $ 64121 § 54,293
(194) 251 {1,197)
68,698 63,870 55,490
52,658 36,315 33,325
24,227 17,654 16,191
9,191 4,071 7,411
3,142 2,636 3,960
874 912 1,248
— 127 1,566
(150) (1,059) (941)
(3,915) — —
2,539 — —
(18,432) 1,976 19,931
(7,786) (297) (1,431)
5,488 (3,981) (500)
5,962 3,856 (8,764)
4,396 22,629 12,623
(4,085) (317) (5,144)
(11,950) (247) (1,497)
25,943 (7,399) _ (12,213)
88,102 76,876 65,765
156,800 140,746 121,255
3,190 9,118 19,616
159,990 149864 140,871
(22,124)  (23,942)  (18,582)
912 1,512 2,165
(290,985)  (65430)  (21,050)
(215) — —
5,000 — —
(307,412) __ (87,860) __ (37.467)
9,708 11,376 6,331
(29,744)  (28,152)  (26.727)
(5,021) — —
885,500 448,000 638,000
(726,000)  (480,000)  (695,500)
— (7,935)  (18,096)
134,443 (56,711) __ (95,092)
(12,979) 5,293 7,412
39,446 34,153 26,741
$ 26467 $ 39446 § 34,153
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\BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Supplemental Data:

Cash paid for income taxes, net ot refunds received $ 9,651 § (108) § 1,426
Tax effect from exercise of options (467) 383 57
Cash received from exercise of options 10,175 10,993 7,145
Interest paid on line of credit 10,055 3,398 4,740
Non-cash investing activities:

Common stock issued for business acyuired $ -~ 8 — % 1,198

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
ABM industries Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ABM Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries as
of October 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 31, 2010. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the related financial
staternent Schedute Il. We have aiso audited ABM Industries incorporated’s internal control over financial reporting
as of October 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). ABM Industries Incorporated’s
management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, the related financial statement Schedule 1l
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting (ltem 9A(b)) . Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements and an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overail
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of ABM Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 31, 2010, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement
Schedule 1, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein. Also in our opinion, ABM Industries Incorporated
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2010, based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ KPMG LLP

New York, New York
December 23, 2010
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ABM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

October 31, 2010 2009
{In thousands, except share amounts)
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39446 § 34,153
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of $10,672 and $10,772 at October 31 , 2010 and 2009, respectively 450,513 445241
Prepaid income taxes ) 1,498 13,473
Current assets of discontinued operations 4,266 10,787
Prepaid expenses 41,308 38,781
Notes receivable and other 20,402 21,374
Deferred income taxes, net 46,193 52,171
Insurance recoverables 5,138 5,017
Total current assets 608,756 620,997
Non-current assets of discontinued operations 1,392 4,567
Insurance deposits 36,164 42,500
Other investments and long-term receivables 4,445 6,240
Deferred income taxes, net 51,068 63,444
Insurance recoverables 70,960 67,100
Other assets 37,869 32,446
Investments in auction rate securities 20,171 19,531
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $98,884 and $92,563 at October 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively 58,088 56,892
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $54,889 and $43,464 at October 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively 65,774 60,199
Goodwill 593,983 547,237
Total assets $1,548,670 $1,521,153
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable § 78928 $ 84,701
Accrued liabilities
Compensation 89,063 93,095
Taxes — other than income 17,663 17,539
Insurance claims 77,101 78,144
Other 70,048 66,279
Income taxes payable 977 1,871
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 7 1,065
Total current liabilities 333,851 342,694
Income taxes payable 29,455 17,763
Line of credit 140,500 172,500
Retirement plans and other 34,626 32,963
Insurance claims 271,213 268,183
Total iiabilities 809,645 834,103
Stockholders’ Equity
Commitment and Contingencies
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 500,000 shares authorized; none issued — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 52,635,343 and 51 ,688,218 shares issued and
outstanding at October 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively 526 517
Additional paid-in capital 192,418 176,480
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes (1,863) (2.423)
Retained earnings 547,944 512,476
Total stockholders' equity 739,025 687,050
Total fiabilities and stockholders’” equity $1,548,670 $1,521,153

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ABM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ended October 31, 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except per share data)
Revenues : $3,495,747 $3,481,823 $3,623,590
Expenses '

Operating 3,134,018 3,114,699 3,224,696

Selling, general and administrative 241,526 263,633 287,650

_ Amortization of intangible assels 11,364 11,384 11,735
Total expenses 3,386,908 3,389,716 3,524,081

Operating profit 108,839 92,107 98,509

Credit losses on auction rate security:

Gross other-than-temporary impairment losses (“OTTI") —_ 3,695 —_

OTTI recognized in earnings (other comprehensive income) 127 (2,129) —
Interest expense 4,639 5,881 15,193
income from continuing operations before income taxes 104,073 84,660 84,316
Provision for income taxes 40,203 29,170 31,585
Income from continuing operations 63,870 55,490 52,731
Discontinued Operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes 251 (1,197) (3,776)

Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes of $1,008 — —_ (3,521)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes 251 (1,197) (7,297)
Net income $ 64121 $ 54293 $§ 45434
Net income per common share — Basic

Income from continuing operations $ 123 § 1.08 § 1.04

Loss from discontinued operations — (0.02) (0.14)

Net Income $ 123 § 1.06 § 0.90
Net income per common share — Diluted

income from continuing operations $ 121 § 1.07 § 1.03

Loss from discontinued operations — (0.02) (0.15)

Net Income $ 121 § 1.05 § 0.88
Weighted-average common and common equivalent shares outstanding

Basic 52,117 51,373 50,519

Diluted 52,908 51,845 51,386
Dividends declared per common share $ 054 § 052 §$ 0.50

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ABM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Stock _Treasury Stock Paid-in  Comprehensive Retained
(In thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Total
Balance October 31, 2007 57,048 § 571 (7,028) $122,338) § 261,182 % 8B0 $ 465463 $605,758
Comprehensive income:
Net imcome — — — — —— - 45,434 45,434
Unreasized loss on auction rate securities, net off
taxes of $2,348 — — — — - {3.621) — (3,621)
Fureigm currency translation, net of taxes of
$580 — - - —_ —— (909) - {909}
Actuarial gain — Adjustments to pension and
other post-retirement benefit plans, net of
taxes of $148 — — — — - 228 — 228

Comprehensive income — —_— — — — _— — 41,132
Dividends:

Common stock — — — — — — (25,271)  (25,271)
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — — — 899 — —_ 899
Stock issued under employees’ stock purchase

and option plans 944 10 — — 14,818 - (490) 14,338
Share-based compensation expense — — — — 7,195 — — 7,195
Balance October 31, 2008 57,992 § 581 (7,028) $(122,338) § 284,094 $ (3,422) § 485,136 $644,051
Comprehensive income:

Net income —_ —_ — — — — 54,293 54,293

Unrealized gain on auction rate securities, net

of taxes of $203 — — — —_ — 297 — 297

Reclass adjustment for credit losses recognized

in earnings, net of taxes of $636 — — — — — 930 — 930
Foreign currency translation, net of taxes of

$241 — — — —_ — 577 — 577
Actuarial loss — Adjustments to pension and

other post-retirement benefit plans, net of .

taxes of $139 —_— — — — —_ (203) —_ (203)
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps, net of

taxes of $412 — — — — — (602) — (602)

Comprehensive income —_— — — — — — — 55,292
Dividends:

Common stock — — — — — — (26,727) (26,727)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — - — (1,314) — — (1,314)
Stock issued under employees’ stock purchase

and option plans 724 6 — —_— 8,557 — (226) 8,337
Share-based compensation expense — — — — 7.411 — — 7,411
Treasury stock retirement (7,028) (70) 7,028 122,338  (122,268) — — —
Balance October 31, 2009 51688 $ 517 — — § 176,480 $ (2,423) $512,476 $687,050
Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — —_ — 64,121 64,121

Foreign currency translation ) 68 — 68

Unrealized gain on auction rate securities, net

of taxes of $179 — — —_ — —_ 461 — 461

Reclass adjustment for credit losses recognized

in earnings, net of taxes of $53 — — — — —_ 74 — 74
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps, net of

taxes of $230 — — — — — 338 —_ 338
Actuarial loss — Adjustments to pension and

other post-retirement benefit plans, net of

taxes of $108 —_ — —_ -~ —_ (381) — (381)

Comprehensive income 64,681
Dividends:

Common stock — — — — — — (28,152)  (28,152)
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — — — 383 — — 383
Stock issued under employees’ stock purchase

and option plans 947 9 — — 11,484 — (501) 10,992
Share-based compensation expense — — — — 4,071 — — 4,071
Balance October 31, 2010 52635 § 526 $§ — — $ 192418 § (1,863) $547,944 $739,025

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ABM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended October 31, 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 64,121 § 54,293 $ 45434
Income (loss) from discontinued operatiors, net of taxes 251 11,197) {7,297)
Income from continuing operations 63,870 55,490 52,731
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuieg operations o net cash provided by continuing operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets 36,315 33325 284075
Deferred income taxes 7654 16,191 28,156
Share-based compensation expense 4071 7,411 7,195
Provision for bad debt 2,636 3,980 4,964
Discount accretion on insurance ciaims 912 1.248 1,766
Auction rate security credit loss impairment 127 1,566 —
Gain on sale of assets (1,059) (941) (23)
Changes in assets and llabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Trade accounts receivable 1,976 19,931 (34,333)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (297) (1,431) 6,942
Insurance recoverables (3,981) (500) 3,401
Other assets and tong-term receivables 3,856 (8,764) 1,424
Income taxes payable 22,629 12,623 {1,053)
Retirement plans and other non-current fiabilities (317) (5,144) (6,659)
Insurance claims (247) (1,497)  (17,800)
Trade accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (7,399) {(12,213) (12,401)
Total adjustments 76,876 65,765 9,544
Net cash provided by continuing operating activities 140,746 121,255 62,275
Net cash provided by discontinued operating activities 9,118 19,6186 6,032
Net cash provided by operating activities 149,864 140,871 68,307
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment (23,942) (18,582)  (34,063)
Proceeds from sale of assets and other 1,512 2,165 1,784
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired (65,430) (21,050) (422,883)
Net cash used in continuing investing activities (87,860) (37,467) (455,162)
Net cash provided by discontinued investing activities : — — 33,640
Net cash used in investing activities (87,860) (37,467) (421,522)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercises of stock options (including income tax benefit) 11,376 6,331 14,620
Dividends paid (28,152)  (26,727) (25,271)
Deterred financing costs paid — — (1,616)
Borrowings from line of credit 448,000 638,000 810,500
Repayment of borrowings from line of credit (480,000) (695,500) (580,500)
Net (decrease) increase in book cash overdratt (7,935) (18,096) 14,506
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (56,711) (95,992) 232,239
Nel increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,293 7412 (120,876)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 34,153 26,741 147,717
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 39,446 $ 34,153 § 26,741
Supplemental Data:
Cash (refunded) paid for income taxes, net of refunds received $ (108)$ 1426 $ 3,529
Excess tax benefit from exercise of oplions 383 57 28
Cash received from exercise of options 10,993 7,145 13,721
Cash interest paid 3,398 4,740 12,626
Non-cash investing activities:
Common stock issued for business acquired $ — $ 1,198 § 621

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Equal Employment Opportunity (‘EEO”): EEO/Affirmative Action Policy

ABM is an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) and Affirmative Action (AA) employer. The Company makes
employment decisions on the basis of merit in order to ensure the full utilization of people of all backgrounds
who possess the best available skills in every job. Company policy prohibits discrimination based on race,
color, creed, gender, religion, marital status, registered domestic partner status, age, national origin or
ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition including genetic characteristics, sexual orientation,
amnesty, status as a covered veteran or any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local
laws. ABM policy also prohibits discrimination based on the perception that anyone has any of those
characteristics, or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those characteristics.
All such discrimination is unlawful. This policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, including,
but not limited to recruitment, selection, assignment, promotion, termination, reduction in force, transfers,
benefits, leaves of absence, compensation, social and recreational programs, training, and education.

The Company is committed to compliance with all applicable laws providing equal employment opportunities.
This commitment applies to all persons involved in Company operations and prohibits unlawful discrimination
by any employee of the Company, including supervisors and coworkers. All employees are encouraged to
assist the Company’s affirmative efforts in support of its EEO/AA policy, including the recruitment and referral
of qualified individuais for employment. All members of management must be familiar with this policy and
must fully support it. They are responsible to apply these principles in good faith, and their performance under
these policies is reviewed.

The Company will work cooperatively with public and private entities, government agencies, educational
institutions, civic organizations, community groups, and other appropriate organizations concerned with
employment opportunities, as well as with its suppliers and subcontractors, in support of its EEO/AA policy.

Disability Accommodation

To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with a
disability, the Company will make reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental limitations or
an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or an employee unless undue hardship
would resuit.

Any applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential functions of the
job should contact ABM’'s Human Resources Department and request such an accommodation. The
individual with the disability should specify what accommodation he or she needs to perform the job. The
Company then will conduct an investigation to identify the barriers that interfere with the equal opportunity of
the applicant or employee to perform his or her job. The Company will identify possible accommodations, if
any, that will help eliminate the limitation. If the accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an undue
hardship, the Company will make the accommodation.

Reporting and Investigation

If an employee believes that he or she has been subjected to any discrimination, the employee should report
the discrimination to his or her supervisor or Human Resources. The complaint shouid be specific and should
include the names of the individuals involved and the names of any witnesses. If the employee needs

assistance with the complaint, or if the employee prefers to make the complaint in person, the employee can
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contact Human Resources or call the Compliance Hotline at 1-877-253-7804. The Company will immediately
undertake a confidential, thorough, and impartial investigation in an attempt to resolve the situation.

If the Company determines that unlawful discrimination has occurred, effective remedial action will be taken
commensurate with the severity of the offense. Appropriate action also will be taken to deter any future
discrimination. The Company will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint and will not knowingly permit
retaliation by managemert employees or coworkers.

Affirmative Action

ABM maintains an Affirmative Action Program as required by law because its business units hold federal
contracts and subcontracts. Executive Order 11246, as amended, not only prohibits discrimination in
employment, it also requires federal government contractors and subcontractors to identify classifications with
under representation of minorities, females, covered veterans and persons with qualified disabilities; to set
goals and timetables for increasing the employment of underrepresented groups, to develop an Affirmative
Action Program, and take extra steps for implementing those reasonable goals through outreach, recruitment,
training, and other special activities and commitments.

Any goals that are established are not intended as rigid, inflexible quotas that must be met, but rather as
targets reasonably attainable by applying every good faith effort in implementing these plans. The use of
goals in the Company’s plans is not intended to discriminate against any individual or group of individuals with
respect to any employment opportunity for which they are qualified on the grounds that they are not the
beneficiaries of Affirmative Action themselves. Nothing in the Company’s Affirmative Action Plans is intended
to sanction the discriminatory treatment of any person. Thus, the Company’s plans have been developed in
strict reliance upon the guidelines on Affirmative Action issued by the U.S. Dept. of Labor.

[ B T T,
ang Propnelary
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Injury and lliness
Prevention Program

ABM is committed to the safety and health of our

employees, and knows that our strength as a company is only as good
as the strength of each individual. We will strive to place safety and
health above all eise, and will involve all workers at every level in
establishing, implementing, and evaluating our efforts. This written
Injury and lliness Prevention Program is intended to reduce the severity
of job-related ilinesses and injuries at our company. it is our intent to
comply with the requirements of each State and/or Federal OSHA
General industry Safety Orders.

REVISED 2012
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Injury & lllness Prevention Program
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Section 29: ABM Janitorial Employee Safety Training Program

Part 1. Safely Training Conducted by ABM JANITORIAL SERVICES
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EMERGENCIES ABM — Emergency Action Plan
Evacuation Procedures (posted at work site)
First Aid and Medical Emergencies
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Trashing — the ABM Way

SLIPS/TRIPS/FALLS Slip, Trip, and Fall Hazards
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WORKPLACE SAFETY Hazard Communication, Chemical Safety
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Section 30: Job Safety Analysis / Work Task Procedures (separate binder)
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Section 1. Responsibility for Safety

Safety Policy Statement

It is the Policy of ABM Janitorial Services to establish a safe work environment for all of its
employees and to promote safety awareness at all levels of the ABM organization.

ABM Janitorial Services recognizes its responsibility to maintain a safe workplace for its
employees; to provide safety devices and mechanical safeguards; to use methods and
processes to protect the life, health, safety and welfare of its employees and the general public
and to maintain and enforce a program to fulfill this responsibility.

To achieve this goal, an Injury and liiness Prevention Program (lIPP) has been adopted in
compliance with applicable local, state and federal laws. This program includes training and
instruction concerning safety and health matters, along with identifying and minimizing
workplace hazards and correcting unsafe work conditions.

To be successful, this program requires cooperation not only between supervisors and
employees, but also between each employee and his or her co-worker. It is the obligation of
each employee to comply with the requirements of this Injury and lliness Prevention Program at
all times.

Signed:_jim McClure Date: january 23, 2012

Jim McClure, President
ABM Janitorial Services
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Management Approval and Management Responsibility

ABM Janitorial Services has established the following lines of authority for the implementation
and maintenance of the Injury and liiness Prevention Program in its branches. Each of these
managers has the authority to shut down the operation immediately, if safety and health
conditions so warrant.

Persons responsible for implementing this l‘n;'m-y and lliness Prevention Program:

REGION - Area of Responsibility:

Name:

Title: Executive Vice President

Address:

Responsibility: Overall responsibility for all company operations in the Region. Reviews and
supports implementation of safety programs and activities.

Name:

Title: Regional Safety Director

Address:

Responsibility: Overall responsibility for all safety programs and activities in the Region.
Provides assistance and support for the region’s branches with all safety related matters.
Monitors the region’s opportunities for improvement in safety and training. Works with those
departments in items of interest to governmental regulatory agencies.

BRANCH — Area of Responsibility:

Name:

Title: Branch Manager

Address:

Responsibility: Oversee, support and advise on all Branch functions. Reviews and supports
implementation of branch personnel in training and safety related issues.

Name:

Title: Operations Manager

Address:

Responsibility: Oversee, support and advise on all Branch operations. Provides immediate
support to the Branch in all phases including operations, administration and safety.

This Injury and lliness Prevention Program is hereby approved and
supersedes any previous program previously established in this location.

Print Branch Manager Name:

Branch Manager Signature: Date:
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Operations Managers and Supervisors Responsibility

Every operations manager and supervisor is responsible for implementing and maintaining the
lIPP in their work areas and for answering employee questions about the IPP. A copy of this
IIPP is available for each operations manager and supervisor. Directly or indirectly, each is
responsible for:

1. Ensuwring safety orientation training for all new employees.

2. Training all employees in their scope of work and company safety programs.
3. Delivering regularly scheduled safety training.

4. Conducting site safety inspections on an ongoing basis.

5

. Developing hazard assessments for any new hazards introduced or identified through
inspections or accident investigations and taking proper action to eliminate those hazards
or training employees on how to work safely with those known hazards.

6. Providing necessary documents to employees in the event of an accident; following and
maintaining company policies and procedures in reporting and investigating all accidents;
arranging for injured employees to receive immediate and timely medical assistance and
expediting the injured employees back to work.

Employees Responsibility for Workplace Safety

Ali employees are expected to comply with the provisions of this program and its intent, which is
to minimize injuries to people and damage to property. We expect all employees to join in the
spirit and intent of this program by making every attempt to work in a safe and efficient manner.

ABM's code of safe work practices (although not named as such) is detailed in a variety of
sources, including, but not limited to, the Corporate Occupational Safety & Environmental
Management Policy, particularly Part 4 with its seven chapters dealing with a wide variety of
restricted employee conduct including health hazards, substance abuse, workplace violence,
horseplay and potential hazard activities.

These subjects are also referenced and taught on a monthly basis through the safety talks
which serve as a reinforcement training to the safe work principles taught in the employees’
safety orientation when they begin working for ABM Janitorial.

The code of safe work practices is supplemented by the document found in the “New Hire
Packet” — Employee Instructions, Information, and Work Rules and in the document Safety
Rules for Your Protection. Please refer to these rules listed on the following page as to a
reminder of our partnership with safety.

Signing the compliance statement on these forms testifies to the employee’s intent to comply
with the safety rules of ABM Janitorial. You will be held accountable for your actions if you fail
to comply with company safety and health policies and procedures.
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ABM employees are expected to perform work tasks in a safe manner. Under no circumstance
shall an employee be permitted to create a hazard that could result in injury to themselves, their
coworkers, the client, or the public. This also applies to the potential for damage to property.

Employees shall not attempt to perform any task for which they have not been trained.
Employees shall attend all safety training, and are expected te demonstrate comprehension and
understanding of the topic{s) covered prior {o commencing work.

Ernployees shall follow all safety instructions provided to them by the Supervisor, Management,
the client, or safety personnel. ABM employees shall generally be responsibie for reporting:

Any work-related safety concerns;

Work-related injuries or ilinesses:

Threatening situations that could affect the safety or security of the work
environment;

Situations or conditions that could be reasonably expected to result in injury or
property damage, and

The presence of unauthorized individuals in the workplace.

m o ow»

Employees are encouraged to express their safety and health concerns without any fear of
retaliation or reprimand.

Employees may report unsafe work practices to their immediate supervisor or to a hotline
telephone number which will direct their call to Region, Division or Corporate safety directors for
immediate attention. This can be done anonymously if the employee desires. The safety alert
hotline is 1-877-ALERT-04 or 1-877-253-7804.
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Section 2. Compliance with Safety Policies and Procedures

Management is responsible for ensuring that all safety and health policies and procedures are
clearly communicated and understood by all workers. Managers and supervisors are expected
to enforce the rules fairly and uniformiy. :

All workers are responsible for using safe work practices, for following all directions, policies
and procedures, and for assisting in maintaining a safe work environment.

Our system of ensuring that all workers comply with the rules and maintain a safe work
environment include, but are not limited to:

Informing employees of the provisions of the Injury and lliness Program (lIPP).
Evaluating the safety performance of all employees.

Recognition of employees who follow safe work practices.

Providing information, training and retraining to employees.

Disciplining workers for failure to comply with safe and healthful work practices.
Providing an Emergency Contact List and/or an Organization Chart.

Tmoow>

Employees are required to comply with safe work practices. If noncompliance is observed, the
following disciplinary measures will be used as appropriate to assure future compliance. These
will depend on the gravity of the violation and the frequency of such violation and be
administered according to progressive discipline guidelines. See the Baseline Safety
Procedures for more specific guidelines. These methods can include:

A. Private counseling from the person responsible for implementing the lIPP or the

employee’s supervisor. :
B. A written warning.
C. Suspension and/or termination.

Documentation of safety communications and enforcement

It is the responsibility of each account to document each instance of communication with the
employee. Actions taken to enforce compliance with safe work practices in any case which
exceeds verbal counseling will be documented by the account and filed in the employee’s
personnel record. '

Shut down of operations to ensure safety

Management has given every manager, supervisor and safety representative the authority to
immediately shut down or cease service operations in the event of non-compliance to safety
policies and procedures deemed necessary to ensure the safety and health of all employees.

When taking such action, the manager, supervisor or safety representative shall immediately
make necessary corrections to put services back in place to prevent as little disruption as
possible to our service goals. If it is not possible to take immediate action to eliminate or
properly reduce the safety hazard, you must contact a company or customer representative who
can do what is necessary to ensure our employees safety and health is not put at risk.

As a follow up to this action, write a hazard assessment of the situation so that we can
implement changes to prevent reoccurrence.
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Baseline Safety Procedures Corrective Action Policy

It is essential that ABM Janitorial Services appropriately address decisions and behaviors that result in
unsafe work practices or uncontrolled/uninformed exposure to hazards. Undesired and unsafe
behaviors make corrective action necessary. The purpose of this corrective action guideline is to
provide a consistent approach for addressing unsafe work behaviors and conditions that may result in
serious injury to employees. This guideline applies to all ABM employees. This policy is not intended
nar should be used o punish an employee who has an injury and files & worker's compensation claim.

1. Responsibilities to Establish Policy
1.1 Division Leadership, Regional Safety and Regional Human Resource Directors shall:
a. Communicate this guideline to employees, supervisors and managers and enforce
appropriate corrective action activities throughout the region.

1.2 Supervisors / Managers shall:
a. Communicate, comply with, and enforce the Baseline Safety Procedures, Accident
Prevention Rules, Division Safety and Health Polides, as well as regulatory requirements.
b. Take responsibility for assuring adherence to safe work practices and shall have the authority
to take corrective measures to ensure safe working practices and conditions in all work
areas.

1.3 Employees shall:

a. Read, understand and comply with the Baseline Safety Procedures, Accident Prevention
Rules, Safety and Health Policies, and regulatory requirements. Direct any questions
regarding these guidelines to the immediate supervisor or manager.

b. Each employee has the ultimate responsibility for his or her own work behavior. However,
the person charged with the direction of work (supervisor or project manager) is responsible
for informing subordinates on safety matters and initiating corrective action when non-
conformance with safety rules, procedures, guidelines, etc., occurs.

2. General Policy Information
Use the guidelines established in this document to determine corrective action when an employee is
determined to be in violation of safety rules, procedures, policies, etc. Document any corrective
action taken in accordance with company policy. Local management, with the support of the
appropriate Human Resources representative, will determine what appropriate corrective action to
initiate.

Safety violations have been divided into two categories. Category 1 violations consist of behaviors
or violations of common practices safety rules. Category 2 violations consist of safety violations
which could cause hazardous conditions that may result in serious injury or death.

3. Corrective Action for Baseline Safety Violations
Violations of this policy will result in progressive disciplinary measures based upon the
circumstances of the event and any active disciplinary documentation on file for employees involved.

Any employee permitting a known hazard to remain unresolved which could potentially cause serious
injury to another person, or who intentionally “covers up” a hazardous condition or incident will
receive a formal written warning and may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
discharge depending on the facts of the incident.

Baseline Safety Procedures
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To All Employees:

All ABM employees are required, at minimum, to abide by these Baseline Safety Procedures to ensure
compliance with our safety program. Although there are many things that require safety precautions and
attention, the following practices and conditions are being singled out as items for which strict
compliance and full conformity are required in order to create a safe working environment for all
employees. Every employee is accountable for compliance with the following Baseline Safety
Procedures and failure to do so will result in the disciplinary action as outlined.

CATEGORY 1 — Common Practices Baseline Safety Procedures

=}

Proper Footwear — must be worn at all times. You need to wear specially designed work shoes or
gym shoes with good slip-resistant rubber soles. No bare feet, open toed shoes, slippers, sandals,
flip-flops, high-heeled shoes, etc. are allowed. Some job tasks require selected footwear to be worn.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) - is mandatory when required by ABM and/or account
policy. Eye goggles (or safety glasses) must be used when using any cleaning chemical.

Trashing with Brute Barrels — requires tipping the barrel on its side and sliding the trash bag out
when emptying. You are not allowed to lift the trash bag straight up and out of the barrel.

Barricades — must be utilized when performing any floor work that results in a slippery and
hazardous floor condition. Also, you must always post caution signs at all building entrances during
wet weather conditions.

No Standing Allowed — on bathroom fixtures, countertops, furniture, chairs, tables, boxes,
equipment, etc. to reach and clean or dust areas.

FAILURE TO COMPLY

Category 1 Infractions — will result in progressive disciplinary action.

CATEGORY 2 - Hazardous Conditions Baseline Safety Procedures

a

Modifying or Bypassing Safety Equipment — is not acceptable. This would include removing or
altering a safety guard devise on a trash compactor, or unauthorized removal of a lockout — tagout
device. Also, never use a piece of equipment that has a mechanical problem or is broken.

Working with Live Electricity - is strictly prohibited without first completing appropriate training and
receiving written permission from both the ABM Branch Manager and the Regional Safety Director.

Working on Aerial Lifts - is not allowed without first receiving ABM Platform Lift Safety Training
along with hands on equipment training from a qualified individual.

Mixing Two or More Chemicals — together (other than diluting with water) is unacceptable as it
could create a dangerous and poisonous gas that may be extremely toxic or even lethal.

No Horse Play or Fighting - or improper use of any motorized vehicle/equipment will be tolerated.

FAILURE TO COMPLY

Category 2 Infractions — will result in suspension with possible termination pending an investigation.
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Section 3. Hazard Assessment

Periodic inspections will be conducted to identify and evaluate workplace hazards, including
unsafe conditions and/or work practices. Formal job observations and inspections are
recommended at the following intervals:

Branch Managers — Quarterly

District Managers — Quarterly

Area Managers -- #onthly

Project Managers — Monthly

The ABM Job Observation Procedure should be used.

Periodic inspections are performed according to the following schedule:

When the IIPP is initially established.

When new, previously unidentified hazards are introduced to the workplace.

When new, previously unidentified hazards are recognized.

When occupational injuries and ilinesses occur.

When we hire and/or reassign permanent or intermittent workers to processes,
applications, or tasks for which a hazard evaluation has not been previously conducted.
F.  Whenever workplace conditions warrant an inspection.

G. Atleast annually.

moom»

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures shall be corrected in a timely
manner based on the severity of the hazards. Hazards shall be corrected according to the
following procedures:

A. When observed or discovered.

B. When an imminent hazard exists which cannot be immediately abated without
endangering employee(s) and/or property, we will remove all exposed workers from the
area except those necessary to correct the existing condition. Workers who are
required to correct the hazardous condition shall be provided with the necessary PPE.

C. Corrections must be made in a timely manner and action taken must be documented.

D. Once improvements have been implemented, they need to be inspected again by a
competent observer.

Prevention and ldentification of Hazards

This IIPP system to identify safety and health hazards includes using information from OSHA
standards and other relevant material in this program to discover any potential hazards in the
workplace. In addition, potential hazards may be identified by reviewing causes of injury and
linesses (OSHA 300 Log and the “Supervisor's First Report of Employee Injury, periodic
scheduled inspections, investigating injuries, illnesses and accidents, and considering
information provided by employees.

Compliance with any applicable OSHA standard is to be assured to address hazards covered
by such standards. In addition, any unsafe or unhealthy condition or work practice that is
discovered will be corrected in a timely manner based on the following:

A. If the hazard discovered may cause injury or illness, it shall be corrected immediately or

employees removed from the area, source of exposure or unsafe condition.

B. If the hazard is one that is easily abated, it shall be corrected immediately.

C. Other hazards shall be corrected in a timely manner.
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The Pre-Bid Hazard Assessments should be performed. The Regional Safety Director
and/or hisfher designated representative shall be consulted in the Pre-Bid Hazard
Assessment. (Use Pre-Bid Hazard Assessment Form)

Employee Report of Hazardous Conditions

Employees and supervisory personnel have the responsibility to inform their managers of potential
hazards, or when something is not right at their accounts. This includes notification when tenants,
customers or visitors have a slip and fall accident. We also need to know when you identify any hazardous
conditions that may at some time cause injury or property damage. The following describes what is
required of our personnel. Thank you for your help.

Notice of Slip and Fall Accidents

@ Any time that you witness or are told of a slip and fall accident that occurred in your account,
immediately notify your supervisor and fill out a report.

a The slip and fall occurrence does not have to be as a result of your negligence or any work task that
you performed, we just need to be notified so we can investigate the accident.

o It does not matter if there was a significant injury as a result of the slip and fall, we still need to be
notified no matter how minor the accident may seem.

Notice of Account Hazards or Unsafe Work Conditions

0  Any time that you see or are informed of a hazardous condition in your account, immediately notify
your supervisor to fill out a report.

o We need to know about these hazards even if they are not in your immediate work area.

a Although there are many things that create hazardous conditions, here are some of the most
common:

o Water leaking or dripping from plumbing, pipes, ceilings, walls, windows, or bathrooms
fixtures.

Continuous overflowing toilets or urinals.

Standing water or a flooded area from pipe bursts or severe storms.

Floor or lobby mats that roll up on the ends or are torn.

Torn or ripped carpeting in common areas or tenant spaces.

Loose floor tiles or tiles stuck in an uneven position.

Non-slip adhesive strips on stairs rolling up or torn.

Cement floors or stairs cracking, coming loose, or missing sections.

e © 6 © e @ o

0 Do not attempt to fix any of these hazardous conditions on your own. Any action you take that does
not hold up or work properly will result in us being responsible for damages.

For Your Information

All employees and supervisors may face disciplinary action if they fail to follow these procedures.
a  If for some reason you cannot contact your supervisor, notify your branch office.

o Prior to discussing any events with someone who is not an employee of ABM, please contact your
branch office for authorization. If you are not certain whether or not to talk to any particular
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individual, get their contact information and let them know that either you or someone else from
ABM will get back to them, then advise your branch office.

Section 4. Workplace Injuries and llinesses

Reporting Workers Compensation Claims

ABM's policy is to provide fair and equitable treatment to employees with legitimate on-the-job
injuries. This training is designed to help you process workers’ compensation claims more
efficiently and effectively. Proper claim handling is in the best interest of injured employees.

All work related incidents, including Workers’ Compensation, General Liability, Property
Damage, or Automobile Liability, shall be reported accurately and in a timely manner according
to procedures provided by ABM Risk Management Services. Serious incidents and fatalities
shall be reported immediately to ABM Safety Services, ABM Risk Management Services, the
Division/Region Safety Director, and Federal OSHA (safety director will contact).

Employees are required to report a workplace injury immediately to their supervisor so that
proper care assistance can be given. When an employee informs the employer representative
that they have an industrial related injury or illness, you must first determine if the employee
is in need of immediate medical attention.

If YES -Call 9-1-1 if an employee has a medical emergency that requires immediate attention
such as a serious head injury, loss of consciousness, severe bleeding, broken bones, seizure,
or an apparent heart attack or stroke. If in doubt, call 9-1-1.

If NO -and the employee wants to seek medical attention they should be directed to the ABM
partnered designated health clinic. Use the proper Medical Treatment Authorization form for
each health clinic. Advise the employee that we have temporary light duty available and
provide the employee with your contact information, directing them to contact you once they
are seen by the physician. It is acceptable to have the employee be treated the next day for
minor injuries at our clinic during normal operating hours.

1. Complete the State “First Report of Injury or lliness” (FROI).
2. Request the employee to sign the medical release form “HIPAA”.

3. Have the employee complete the Employee Detail Report in the language they feel most
comfortable with writing in.

4. Conduct a thorough investigation of the incident (time, conditions, witnesses, specifics of
the injury, etc). Ask the employee how the injury or iliness occurred. If possible, have
the employee show you where the incident took place and report to us your
observations.

5. Complete your notes and fax notes, FROI, Employee Detail Report, and HIPAA within
12 hours to ABM Risk office. Include any medical notes from the employee.

6. If the employee has reported a work related injury at night, follow up with them the next
day to gather information on their status:
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a) How they are doing (ask specifically what part of their body is hurting)?

b) Did they see their physician (request name, address, and telephone number of
physician)?

c) When was their appointment and what did the doctor say (what were they
diagnosed with, was the employee prescribed medication or physical therapy)?

d) Does the employee have any follow-up appointments?
&) Work status-is fhve employee released to full duty, modified duty or off work?

i) If the employee has been given restrictions, advise them that work is available
and what he or she will be doing.

if) Assure the employee that the work will fall within the restrictions as outlined by
the physician.

iii) Advise the employee when and at what time they are expected to return to
work.

f) Document your discussion with the employee (handwritten notes are fine).

7. Call the ABM Risk Management office between 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. either the same
day (if the injury happens during the day) or the next day (if it happens during the
evening).

8. Risk Management will coordinate with the supervisor on return to work and claims
management of the employee.

9. If the employee submits any medical notes, fax these notes to Risk Management.

If NO - and the employee does NOT want to seek medical attention, you need to conduct the
same type of investigation and complete all of the necessary forms just as you would when an
employee seeks medical attention. In this case a refusal of medical treatment form should be
completed.

1. Follow up with the employee the next day to make sure that they are fine and will not be
seeking any medical attention. Document any conversation with the employee.

2. Advise the employee that if they later need to seek medical attention, that they are to
inform you immediately. At which time you have them use the Medical Treatment
Authorization from for our designated health clinics. Advise the employee that we have
temporary light duty available and provide the employee with your contact information,
directing them to contact you once they are seen by the physician.

3. Follow up with the employee throughout the week. Should the employee later mention
that they sought medical treatment, we must be advised of this promptly. Gather all
pertinent information to send along to Risk Management.

Accident Investigations

All accidents, exposures and incidents will be investigated by management. Use the
ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION forms provided by the Risk Management Department.
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Procedures for investigating workplace accidents and hazardous substance exposures include:
Visiting the accident scene as soon as possible.

Interviewing injured workers and witnesses.

Examining the workplace for factors associated with accident/exposure.

Determining the cause of the accident/exposure.

Taking corrective action to prevent the accident/exposure from recurring.

Recording the findings and corrective actions taker:.

Forwarding any additional information as it may develop.

@Mmoow»

Experience may be the best and toughest instructor an employee or manager can have. If ABM
Janitorial Services employees do not take advantage of documenting their experiences and
learning from them, they are apt to repeat the bad habits or unproductive activities. This applies
especially to accidents in the workplace. ABM Janitorial Services takes seriously its
responsibility to provide a safe working condition for all its employees. Unfortunately our
working conditions often change and ABM employees may face new hazards.

It is important that ABM managers take appropriate action to deal with accidents in the
workplace and constantly strive to eliminate unsafe working conditions from the workplace. An
important activity in ABM’s effort to effectively address the hazards and eliminate them is the
conducting of an immediate and thorough investigation of the accident. This process enables
the manager and employee to learn from their experiences and eliminate the hazard in the
workplace as much as possible.

Conducting an Accident Investigation

Before beginning any investigation, make sure the injured individual receives the appropriate medical care.

STEP 1: Collect Information — This includes immediate actions, interviewing witnesses,
assessing accident history and reviewing other significant records.

Immediate Actions
1. Secure the scene, when needed
2. Protect against further loss (barricade the area)
3. Investigate the physical conditions at the scene (lighting, floor conditions, air)
4. Document all key information

Interviewing Witnesses
1. Put the person at ease and explain the purpose of the interview
2. Ask open-ended questions to get to the facts — do not assign blame
3. You are trying to obtain the facts of the accident and not disciplining or building a case
against the employee

Assessing Accident History
1. Evaluate trends using available information such as:
a. OSHA Logs
b. First Aid Reports
c. Accident Files — Supervisor’s First Report of Injury
d. Documented Interviews with workers and managers.

Reviewing Other Significant Records
1. This steps includes looking for helpful information in such records as:
a. Standard Work Practices
b. Job Safety Analysis
c. Material Safety Data Sheets
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d. Employee Training Records
e. Maintenance Logs
f. Inspection Records

STEP 2: List All Possible Causes — This includes determining immediate causes and
contributing causes

1. An immediate cause could be the unsafe act itself, condition or systems that dsrecﬂy led to
the accident

2. A contribuling cause could be the actions, conditions or systems that sided m the
development of an accident, but did not directly cause it.

Accident investigations are not totally effective unless all causes are determined and appropriately
corrected.

STEP 3: Analyze the Possible Causes — Do not over analyze the possible causes — Keep it
Simple!
1. The causes may fall into four broad categories: (Equipment, Environment, People, and
Management).

2. Feel comfortable that you know the “Who”, “What”, “Where”, “When”, and “How” for the
immediate causes and for the most significant contributing causes.

3. With the probable causes to the accidents in mind, ask yourself “Why is that so?” until it
no longer makes sense to go any further.
4, With these causes understood, it is time to develop corrective actions.

STEP 4: Developing Corrective Actions — This may include one or more of the following
activities:

Eliminate the Hazard

Substitute a Less Hazardous Material

Substitute a Less Hazardous Process

Use Engineering Controls

Use Administrative Controls

Assess Appropriateness of Personal Protective Equipment
Institute or Reinforce Employee Training

STEP 5: Formalize the Investigation Information and Corrective Actions

Document the Summary of the Investigation

Determine if the corrective actions apply to more than one employee, to more than one job
function, to more than one shift, etc.

3. Prioritize corrective actions based on future accident potential

4, Submit both interim and permanent corrective actions to the Branch Manager and
Regional Safety Director.

N~ D NN~

STEP 6: Implement the Corrective Action and Monitor the Results

1. Ensure that permanent corrective actions do not get lost in the shuffle.
2. Evaluate the effectiveness of implemented corrective actions.

a. Interview Employees

b. Conduct Job Safety Analysis

c. Run reports to detect accident experience rate

ABM Fatality Protocol

In the unfortunate event of an employee fatality at one of our work sites, the shift supervisor
must immediately contact their manager or any senior manager (regardiess of the time of
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day). Under no circumstances should anyone contact OSHA directly. Only ABM Division
Counsel, along with Corporate Safety Services, can directly inform OSHA of the fatality
within the required eight (8) hour notification period.

Hospitalization of three or more employees seriously injured also requires this same protocol
action. Serious refers to life threatening or crippling injuries.

Do not discuss the incident with any member of the press or media; instead, direct them to
contact our local branch office. '

ABM Incident Discussion Policy

There may be times when someone outside the company contacts you or another employee
at your account to get information and knowledge that you or they may have on an incident
that occurred that becomes a legal matter. If you are contacted in such a manner, you must
be aware of our strict policy regarding sharing information with someone other than a known
ABM manager or representative. Keep all employees informed of this policy:

At no time should an ABM employee give information to any attorney, investigator or
other unknown person who attempts to discuss an incident with them by telephone or
by conducting an onsite interview, unless they receive the expressed permission from
ABM Risk Management. There are no exceptions to this policy, even if requested by a
customer.

If any employee is contacted by any attorney or investigator (even if the employee thinks
they work for ABM), they are to direct that individual to the ABM Janitorial Services branch
office. They may contact by phone an ABM Risk Management employee. Only these ABM
individuals may give you or any other employee permission to discuss the incident with
others.

Section 5. Training and Instruction

Policy and Responsibility

All workers, including Managers and Supervisors, shall have training and instruction on general
and job-specific safety and health practices. Training and instruction shall be provided as
follows:

When the IIPP is first established.

To all new workers.

To all workers given new job assignments for which training has not been previously
provided.

Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced to the
workplace and represent a new hazard.

Whenever the employer is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard.

To supervisors to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to which workers
under their immediate direction and control may be exposed.

G. To all workers with respect to hazards specific to each worker's job assignment.

mm o owr
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The person responsible for implementing the [IPP is responsible for assuring the employee
training is provided and documented. Supervisors and other designated employees may be
designated to assist in providing training.

Some of the training topics covered include, but are not limited to, the following:

A. Explanation of the employer’s IIPP, measures for reporting any unsafe conditions, work
practices, and injuries.
The Hazard Communicaion Program, including the use of personal protective
equipment.
Information about chemical hazards to which workers could be exposed and other
hazard communication program information.
Emergency action and fire prevention plan.
Provision for medical services and first aid, including emergency procedures.
Prevention of musculoskeletal disorders, including proper lifting techniques.
Proper housekeeping. :
Proper storage to prevent stacking goods in an unstable manner and storing goods
against doors, exits, fire extinguishing equipment and electrical panels.
Prohibiting horseplay, scuffling, or any violence, or other acts that tend to inhibit safety.

IGTMO O w

Documentation of Training

Training is documented in the following manner:

A. Training sessions will be documented with a sign-up sheet that indicates the date,
subject of training, trainer and attendees.

B. Records will be kept with the branch office for all employees participating in the training
sessions.

Safety Training Requirements

Employees are required to receive safety training:

When the lIPP is first established.

To all new workers.

To all workers given new job assignments for which training has not been previously
provided.

Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced to the
workplace and represent a new hazard.

Whenever the employer is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard.
To supervisors to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to which workers
under their immediate direction and control may be exposed.

G. To all workers with respect to hazards specific to each worker's job assignment.

Tm o owy

Employee training will be conducted based on the site specific hazards of each location or job
task. All hazards at each location and for each job task will be assessed and proper training will
then be planned and conducted before employees encounter any such known hazards that put
their safety and health at risk.

No new job task can be assigned to an employee unless the proper job task safety assessment
has been performed, hazards eliminated or the necessary safety training was conducted prior to
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ABM.

Bullding Value Injury & lliness Prevention Program
doing the assignment. It is ABM's commitment to safety that also dictates continuous
improvement to safety including regular safety discussions, safety talk meetings, job task safety
checks, safety audits, job hazard assessments, site hazard assessments.

At minimum, monthiy safety talks will be conducted for all employees on various safety related
subjects. These will be distributed and should be conducted within a week of receipt. Copies
of the sign-in rosters should be sent back to the safety director with the next payrcii {or
directly to your manager if so instructed). Training success rate is calculated each month,
so it is important to return the rosters on a timely basis. : :

All training should be verbally communicated to all employees in their dominant language.
Translators should be utilized when necessary.

Written safety compliance programs and training material will be distributed to each account on
an “as needed" basis. Once provided, site managers and supervisors must maintain the written
programs in binders or files and be made available for review to any employees when
requested or for ABM managers conducting a safety assessment.

The required safety training for compliance with these programs must be conducted before
employees perform tasks which contain hazards for which the training was made necessary.
All safety training must be documented on training rosters and maintained in the same
binders or files containing the written safety programs. When requested, copies of these
training records shall be sent to the branch office for review by the safety director (or other
company representative).
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ABM.

Building Value Injury & lliness Prevention Program

Section 6. Employee Program Participation

Employees are encouraged to be active participants in the ABM safety program. Site projects
that are logistically capable of hosting a safety committee will do so. Volunteers will be invited
to attend organized safety committee meetings hosted either by the project manger or
designated safety representative. When possibie, members will rotate routinely participating in
job abservations andfor site audits. Results of observations and/or audits will be reviewed by
the safety committee on site or with the respective branch committee. Recommendations will
be made to the committee and corrective actions documented and communicated back to the
project employees by the respective committee member, designated safety representative or
supervisor.

Employees will be consulted when hazards are identified and advised when a corrective action
plan is in place. Employees are encouraged to report any hazard(s) to their supervisor or
manger.

(Separate Program Employee Observation Program)

Section 7. Program Evaluation

In order to ensure the effectiveness of the ABM Safety Program, the program will be evaluated
on an annual basis. Based off employee input and management’s program evaluations, the
program will be revised if necessary. Any changes or revisions will be communicated to all
employees. Site postings, electronic postings, and team meetings can serve as information
vehicles. Regional Safety Directors will ensure that all employees have access to this Injury &
lliness Prevention Program upon request.

Employees may report unsafe work practices to their immediate supervisor or to a Hotline
telephone number which will direct their call to Region, Division or Corporate safety directors for
immediate attention. This can be done anonymously if the employee desires and without
retaliation. The safety alert Hotline is 1-877-ALERT-04 or 1-877-253-7804.
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DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY AND PROCEDURES
SUMMARY

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

As a Company, we are concerned about the negative effects that drugs ard alcohol can have upon our employees’ safety
and health. We believe efficiency, security, safety, and our reputation can all be threatened by substance abuse. The
illegal use of drugs and the abuse of alcohol lead to increased absenteeism, accidents and medical claims.

SUMMARY

The Company desires to ensure a safe, healthful and productive work environment. To do so, we have a Drug-Free
Workplace Policy to assure, to the greatest extent possible, that we have a working environment free of the effects of
drug use and alcohol abuse. The Drug-Free Workplace Policy applies to all employees and sets forth the Company's
policies and plans regarding:

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE

For those employees who seek help voluntarily, they are encouraged to do so. The Company believes early recognition
and treatment of alcohol and drug abuse are critical to successful rehabilitation and to the minimization of business,
personal, family and social disruption. Therefore, the Company encourages early diagnosis and treatment for substance
abuse and supports sound rehabilitation efforts. Should an employee wish to seek assistance, insurance coverage is as
described in the Company's Medical Benefits Plan and the Company's Family/ Medical Leave Policy.

For those employees who follow a manager referral for treatment, they will be required to sign a rchabilitation
agreement. Employees must comply with all of the established treatment conditions or the result may be termination.

Employees are always required to meet the established standards of conduct and job performance, even during the
course of substance abuse treatment. Neither voluntary nor management referrals for assistance prevent the employee
from being subject to discipline.

PROHIBITED CONDUCT

The Policy lists a number of examples of prohibited conduct, with obvious examples being using, possessing,
manufacturing, distributing, selling or being under the influence of illicit drugs on Company property, on Company
business, or during working hours.

Unauthorized use or possession of alcohol or being "under the influence” of alcohol (defined as a blood alcohol content
of .08% or higher) on Company premises or while on Company business, are also prohibited. In addition, refusing to
sign when required by the Company's Policy the Drug-Free Workplace Policy Agreement, the Substance Abuse Testing
Consent Form, the Laboratory Chain of Custody Form or the Rehabilitation Agreement will be considered a violation of
the Policy.

CONSEQUENCES

Any violation of the Drug-Free Workplace Policy, even a first offense, is basis for disciplinary action up to and
including termination. Particularly serious violations, such as selling drugs at the Company, will normally result in
immediate termination. In addition to any disciplinary action for a violation of the Policy, or while such actions are held
in abeyance, the Company may, in its sole discretion, refer the employee for assessment, counseling and/or to a
treatment program.

1 HRFORMS\DRUGFREE.011298



TESTING

Testing is the only way 1o know with certainty whether an individual has drugs or alcohel in histher system. For the
safety of all our employess, the Company may test for drugs and/or alcohol in the following circumstances:

- Post-Employment: When a person is offered a position.

- Post-Accident and Unsafe Practice: When an employee causes, contributes to, is substantially
involved in or, through action or inaction, aggravates an accident or incident.

- Reasonable Suspicion of Drug/Alcohol Use: When the Company has reasonable suspicion that
inappropriate behavior may be due to drug or alcohol use.

- Follow-up: When an employee has been referred by the Company to counseling or rehabilitation
under this Policy.
The Company has contracted with a drug testing laboratory which utilizes only the most accurate and reliable testing
method available. Failure or refusal by an employee to cooperate with the Company's Drug-Free Workplace Policy or
to submit to such a test when required under this Policy will result in disciplinary action.

CONFIDENTIALITY

All information concerning medical examinations, drug and/or alcohol testing results, and rehabilitation and treatment of
an employee will be treated as confidential information. However, the Company reserves the right to use testing results
to decide upon any action to be taken towards an employee, or to the extent necessary, to defend its actions in
subsequent legal or other proceedings.

IMPORTANT: This document is only a summary of the Company's official Drug-Free Workplace Policy. The
official copy is available to all employees for their review and should be consulted with respect to any specific
questions. Employees may review the entire Policy by contacting their managers or the Employee Relations
Manager.
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DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY AGREEMENT

I have received and read the summary of the Drug-Free Workplace Policy of the Company. In .
addition, I have been provided the opportunity to read the Drug-Free Workplace Policy in its
entirety. [ understand I may be required to submit to an alcohol and/or drug test. I also understand
that failure to comply with this Policy will result in discipline, up to and including termination.

DATE EMPLOYEE'S SIGNATURE

EMPLOYEE'S NAME (printed)
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ABM.

Building Value

Explain your employee payroll process.

ABM utilizes Oracle’s JD Edwards 8.12 ERP system to manage and process all ABM employee’s payroll
related information. Additionally, ABM uses an enterprise class time management system complete with clock
devices with biometric scanning for fingerprint recognition. Also available is IVR, a system that allows
employees to clock in over the phone, as well as a web based time entry system which allows authorized
users access to the ABM Timekeeping system from any computer with an internet connection.

Employee paychecks are mailed overnight from our corporate office to the focal ABM district office nearest tc
the customer location according to employee payroll cycles. Additionally, paychecks can be mailed from the
local district office directly to the employee. All ABM employees are eligible for direct deposit of payroll
checks. Additionally, ABM employees have now been given the option of receiving electronic paystubs, rather
than paper, for direct deposit payment methods.

&

Confidential and Propristary




New Jersey Sports and Expesition Authority

Cleaning Bid 2012

DETAILED COST SHEET FIRST YEAR

MANAGEMENT COSTS Hours | Billing Rate | Total Bid
Cost
Management staffing is to be bid on the basis
of the following staffing:
One part time General Manager
. . . . . N/A N/A
Bidder is to provide hours, if considered N/A f
necessary
Payroll Administrative Support
. . . . 2080 $28.32 58,905.60
Bidder is to provide hours, if considered 858,
necessary
One Cleaning Manager 2,080
$34.39 $71,531.20
The cost is to
provide for 6
paid holidays
and 2 weeks
vacation
One Supervisor 2,080
$27.64 $57,491.20
The cost is to
provide for 6
paid holidays
and 2 weeks
vacation
One Per Diem Cleaning Supervisor 1,000 $27.64 $27,640.00
TOTAL MANAGEMENT LABOR $215,568.00
TO COST
PROPOSAL
SUMMARY
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority Cleaning Bid 2012

DETAILED COST SHEET FIRST YEAR

DIRECT LABOR ' Hours - Billing Total Bid Cost
Rate

Meadowlands Sports Complex Site

Full Time Cleaner 8,320  $21.84  $181,768.80
Part Time Cleaner 5000 $21.84  $199,2606.00
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST $ 290,908 .80
DIRECT LABOR TO COST
PROPOSAL
SUMMARY
1Z0D Cénter
Machine Operator 7,594 $21.84  $165,852.96
Full Time Cleaner 8,437 $21.84  $184,264.08
Part Time Cleaner 19,504  $21.84  $425967.36
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST $ 776,084.40
TO COST
PROPOSAL
SUMMARY
NOTE:

Cleaners will only get paid when they work. No vacation time will be paid

All overtime needs to be approved in advance
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State of New Jersey

Division of Purchase and Property
Two-Year Chapter .81/ Executive Order 117 Vendor Certification and
Disclosure of Political Contributions

For AGENCY USE ONLY
General information
Solicitation, RFP or Contract No. e / A Award Amount ﬂ’ /,l /71;’5? ; O 73
T A ) + ' J ) 3 o0 " ’
Description of Services Tﬂ Ay 'f’c;ﬂ a( 525.‘@'; (i r1/ gf,a?wiéﬂy ﬁ{(qml@'/{@;m f( lw&dﬁw‘ c(g;&@w»m

Agency Coentact Information

Agency /)iizéf‘ dﬁuég/ ,;Af)’f]é{ ém:)ﬂ%){t /¢ /Z,;{;/{/ Contact Person [“tf’id L1 /i/éd/‘fc

Phone Number __ (' ZOE) (/%U " ‘/2 7z Agency Email f’:i(wmc{ —ﬁ//‘z(_i chf} [ 15 e (U

Part 1: Vendor Information

Fulf Legal Business Name ABM Janitorial Services Northeast, Inc.
{including trade name if applicable)

Business Type IX] Corporation [ uimited Partnarship [] Professional Carporation [ General Parinership
[]timited Liability Company [ sole Proprietorship . [J timlted Liability Partnership

Address 1 _ 708 W. Colfax Avenue, Suitd B’ **Address 2

City Kenilworth sate NI Zip 07033 Phone 908-259.3444

Vendor Emall sbuschbacher@abm.com Vendor FEIN 20-0928900

Part 2: Public Law 2005, Chapter 61/ Executive Order 117 (2008) Certification
| hereby certify as follows:

1. On or after October 15, 2004, neither the below-named entity nor any individual whose contributions are attributatle to
the entity pursuant to Executive Order 117 (2008) has solicited or made any contribution of money, pledge of contribution,
including in-kind contributions, company or organization contributions, as set forth below that would bar the award of a
contract to the vendor, pursuant to the terms of Executive Order 117 (2008),

a) Within the preceding 18 months, the below-named person or organization has not made a contribution to:

(i} Any candidate committee and/or election fund of any candidate for or holder of the public office of Governor
or Lieutenant Governor,

(i} Any State, county, municipal political party committee; OR

(iily Any legislative feadership committee,

b} During the term of office of the current Governor(s), the belew-named person or organizaﬂon has not made a
contribution to

{iy Any candidate, committee and/or election fund of the Governor or Lieutenant Governor, OR
{li} Any State, county or municipal political party. comm'ttee nominatmg such Governor in the election preceding
the commencement of said Governor’s ferm,

c) Within the 18 months immediately prior to the first day of the term of office of the Governor(s), the below-named
person or organization has not made a contribution to

(i) Any candidate, committee and/or election fund of the Governor or Lieutenant Governor, OR
Any State, county, municipal political party committee of the political party nominating the successful gubernatorial
candidate(s) in the last gubernatorial election.

PLEASE NOTE: Prior to November 15, 2008, the only disqualifying contributions include those made by the vendor or a principal owning
or controlling more than 10 percent of the profits or assets of a business entity (or 10 percent of the stock in the case of a business entity
that is a corporation for profit) to any candidate committee and/or election fund of the Governor or to any state or county political party
within the preceding18 months, during the term of office of the current Governor or within the 18 months immediately prior 1o the first day of
the term of Office of Governor.
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Part 3: Disclosure of Contributions Made

Check this box if no reportable contributions have been made by the above-named business entity
or individual,

Name of Recipient Address of Recipient

Date of Contribution L Amount of Contribution

Type of Contributlon (Le. currency, check, loan, in-Kind a

Contributor Name

Relationship of Contributor to the Vendor
Contributor Address
City State Zip

if this form is not being completed electronically, please atiach pages for additional contributions
as nacessary, Otherwise click "Add a Contribution" fo enter additiona! contributions.

Check this box If no reportable contributions have been made by the above-named business entity
X or individual,

Name of Reciplent Address of Recipient

Date of Contribution Amount of Contribution

Type of Contribution (i.e. currency, check, loan, in-kind

Contributor Name

Relatlonship of Contributor to the Vendor s
Contributor Address
City State Zip

If this form Is not being completed electronicaily, please attach pages for additional contributions
as nacessary. Otherwise click "Add a Contribution" to enter additional contributions,

Check this box if no reportable contributions have been made by the above-named business entity
or Individual.

Name of Reclpient ' Address of Reclplent

Date of Contribution Amount of Contribution

Type of Contribution (i.e. currency, check, loan, in-kind

Contributor Name

Relationship of Contributor to the Vendor

Contributor Address

City State Zip

if this forfni;, not being completed electronically, please attach pages for additional contributions
as necessary. Otherwlse click “Add a Contribution” to enter additional contributions.
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Part 4: Certification

I have read the instructions accompanying this form prior to completing this certification an behalf of the above-named business entity.
| certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the foregoing statements by me are true. | am aware that if any of the statements
are willfully false, | am subject to punishment,

t understand that this certification will be in effect for two (2) years from the date of approval, provided the ownership status
does not change and/or additional contributions are not made. If there are any changes In the awnership of the entity or additional
contributions are made, a new full set of documents are required to be completed and submitted. By submitting this Certification and
Disclosure, the person or entity named herein acknowdadges this continuing reporting responsibility and cerfifies that it will adhere to it.

{CHECK ONE BOX A, Bor C)

X | am certifying on behalf of the above-named business entity and all lndividué!s andior entities whose contribugions are
A attributable {o the entity pursuant to Executive Qrder 117 (2008). ‘

{B) [:] 1 am certifying on behalf of the above-named business entity only.

a.oore TN,

(©) {:] I am certifying on behalf of an individual and/or entity whose contributions are attributable to the vendor.

Signed Name / NPrim Name Paul Savage

Phone Number 908-259-3444 Date August 23, 2012

Title/Position Regional Vice President

Agency Submission of Forms

The agency should submit the completed and signed Two-Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure forms, together with a
completed Ownership Disclosure form, either electronically to cd134@treas.state.nj.us, or regular mail at Chapter 51 Review

Unit, P.O. Box 038, 33 West State Strest, 9th Fioor, Trenton, NJ 08625. The agency should save the forms locally and keep the

original forms on file, and submit copies to the Chapter 51 Review Unit.
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State of New Jersey
Divisionof Purchase and Property
Standard Forms Certffication

This certification will serve as your official signature for the following forms presented within this document packet.

1. Ownership Disclosure Form

2. Disclosure of Investigations and Actions Involving Bidder Form

Certification: |, being duly sworn upon my oath, hereby represent, and ,Slate that the foregoing information and any attachments thereto to
the best of my knowledge are true and complete. I alricwletge thaf the State of New Jersey is relying on the information contained herein
and thereby acknowledge that | am under a continuing obligation from the date of this certification through the completion of any
contracts with the State to notify the State In writing of any changes to the answers of information contained herein, |
acknowledge that | am aware that it is a criminal offense to make a false statement or misrepresentation in this certification, and if } do so, |
recognize that | am subject to criminal prosecution under the law and that it will also constitute a material breach of my agreement(s) with
the State of New Jersey and that the State at its option may declare any contract(s} resulting from this certification void and unenforceable.

I certify that the signature on this page has the effect of and constitutes a signature on every page,

Company Name: ABM Janitorial Services Northeast ///Z_/ = —(Signature)
Address: 708 W. Colfax Avenue, Suite B Paul Savage (Name)
Kenilworth, NJ 07033 Regional Vice President (Title)
Loose L VRN S .
FEIN/SSN: 20-0928900 L . " August 23, 2012 (Date)
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State of New Jersey

Division of Purchase and Property
Gwnership Disclosure Form

Bid Number: Cleaning Bid 2012 Bidder/Offeror: ABM Janitorial Services Northeast, Inc.

Complete All Questlons Below

T

1. Within the past flve years has another company or corporation had a 10% or greater interest In the firn identified
above? (If yes, complete and attach a separate disclosure form reflecting pravious ownership interests.)

2. Has any person or entity listed In this form or its attachments ever been arrested, charged, indicted or convicted in a
criminal or disorderly persons matter by the State of New Jersey, any other State or the U.S. Government?
(If yes, attach a detailed explanation for each instance.)

3. Has any person or entity listed in this form or its attachments ever been suspended, debarred or otherwise declared
Ineligible by any agency of government from bidding or contracting to provide services, labor, material, or supplies?
(If yes, attach a detailed explanation for each Instance.)

4, Are there now any criminal matters or debarment proceedings pending in which the firm and/or its officers and/or
managers are involved? (If yes, attach a detailed explanation for each Instance,)

5. Has any Federal, State or Local license, permit or other similar authorization, necessary to perform the work applied
for herein and held or applied for by any person or entity listed in thls form, been suspended or revoked, or been
subject or any pending proceedings specificaily seeking or litigating the Issue of suspension or revocation?

(If yes, attach a detailed explanation for each Instance.)

o o o o 43
M K K K

&4

INSTRUCTIONS:  Provide below the names, home addresses, dates of birth, and ownership interest of all individuals, and any
partnerships, corporations and any other owner having a 10% or greater interest in the firm named above. If a listed awner Is a corporation
or partnership, provide below the same information for the holders of 10% or more interest in the corporation or partnership. If this form has
previously been submitied to the Purchase Bureau in connection with another bld, indicate changes, if any, where appropriate, and
complete the certification below.

Include the name, home address, and date of birth, of ali officers of the bidder/offeror.named above. If an officer has no ownership interest,
so indicate with a zero.

Name N/A Date of Birth

Office Held Ownership Interest (Shares Owned or % of Partnership)
Officer [] ves No

Home Address

Add Ownershiplnfo, . |
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 State of New Jersey
Division of Purchase and Property
Disciosure of Envestigations and Actions Involving Bidder

The bidder shall provide a detailed descripfion of any investigation, Titigafion, Including administrative complaints or other
administrative proceedings, involving any public sector clients during the past five years including the nature and status of the
investigation, and, for any litigation, the caption of the action, a brief description of the action, the date of inception, current

stafus,and, If applicable, disposition.

investigation:
Indicate "WONE" in the "Person or Entity" field If no investigations were undertaken,

Person or Entity NONE Date of Inception
Disposition Status (if applicable)

Brlef Description

Bidder Contact Bidder Phone

Additional Information

A esgatan o

Person or Entity NONE Date of inception
Disposition Status (If applicable)

Brief Description

Bidder Contact Bidder Phone

Additional Information

. Add lhvestigation Info -~

Person or Entity NONE Date of Inception
Disposition Status ({f applicable)

Brief Description

Bidder Contact o Bidder Phone

Additional Information

[ - . Addlnvestigatlon Info

Delete
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Litigation/Administrative Compalnts:
indicate "NONE" in the "Person or Entity" field if no Litigation/Administrative Complaints.

Person or Entity NONE ‘ Date of Inception
Disposition Status (If applicable) Caption of Action

Brief Dascription »

Bidder Contact Bidder Phone

Additional Information
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New Jersey Sports & Exposition Authority

REQUIRED FORMS



Bidder Must Submit The Following Information With His bid for Evaluation

The number of years the bidding firm has been performing the service as it relates to the contract service
as reguired in the Bid.

Janitorial Services 103 Total Years

Location of the Contractor's office that will be responsible for managing this contract,

a. Company Name: ABM Janitorial Services Northeast, Inc,

Address: 708 W. Colfax Avenue, Suite B

City: Kenilworth, NJ

Phone No.: 908-259-3444

On Site Manager of this Contract: Jeff Wasserman

b, Cash Discount Terms Offered:
1%, net 15 days
c. Bidder's Federal Employer’s Identification No.:
20-0928900

Name(s) and phone number(s) of management personnel to be contacted if problems or emergencies
oceur,

Name Phone No. Time
a. Jeff Wasserman 201-694-8518 All hours
b, Frank DiBartolo 917-647-6696 All hours
c. Steve Buschbacher 917-559-5475 Business Hours




4.

Bidder must furnish a list of five (5) contracts completed within the last three (3) years that bidder has
performed service as it relates to the contract service as required in the bid on a direct contract basis.

Location Contact Person/Phone Contract Service
a. Cleveland Browns Stadium Todd Argust Janitorial and Parking
Berea, OH 4490-824-3656
b. STAPLES Center Sam Kropp Post Event Cleaning

Los Angeles, CA

213-742-7262

c. ? Mall of America Field - Metrodome

Steve Maki

Minneapolis, MN

612-332-0386

Post Event Cleaning

FedEx Field - Washington Redskins

Lon Rosenberg

Janitorial

Hyattsville, MD

301-276-6062

Carrier Dome

Pat Campbell

Syracuse, NY

315-443-4634

Janitorial




Bidder shall furnish a list of all contracts from which the Contractor was discharged or those where the
Contractor defaulted and a claim was made against the surety on the Performance Bond or any other
reason within the last three (3) years.

Company Name Contact Person/Phone # Reason for Loss or Termination
a. N/A N/A /A




Bidder must furnish a list of contracts lost or terminated during the last three (3) years with the reason
for loss or termination.

Company Address Contact Person/Phone # Reason for Loss or Termination
a, N/A N/A N/A




Bidder must provide a list of qualified personnel that will be assigned to work on this contract, including a brief
resume. Resume shall include for each person number of years, and his qualifications and experience to handle
the requirements of this bid.

Name Steve Buschbacher Years 14

Qualified Experience Mr. Buschbacher is the Regional Manager for all ABM service locations througout the New Jersey

region. He has been in the janitorial industry with ABM for 14 years. Steve manages over 2,500 employees performing services

that cover over 30 million square feet throughout New Jersey. Mr. Buschbacher's responsibilities inciude maintaining customer

relations, quality control, capturing new business and all aspects of P&L reporting for New Jersey. Mr. Buschbacher obtained

his Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting from Manhattan College.

Name Frank DiBartolo Years 16

Qualified Experience _ Frank DiBartolo is a District Manager for ABM in the Northern New Jersey area and has been in the

janitorial industry for 16 years. In this role, he is reponsible for managing the daily janitorial operations for over 20 locations.

As a District Manager, Frank manages approximately 25 project management professionals and works directly with clients

to ensure their total satisfaction. He is responsible for ensuring the delivery of a first class janitorial program. Frank is also

responsible for the training and development of the janitorial staff as well as ensuring that the facilities are safety compliant.

Name Years

Qualified Experience




Name Years
Qualified Experience

Name Years
Qualified Experience

Name Years

Qualified Experience




PB-AAF.1 R5/26/09
Affirmative Action Supplement

lAFFRIMATIVE ACTION Term Contract - Advertised Bid Proposa)

Department of the Treasury Bid Number:

Division of Purchase & Property
State of New Jersey Bldder:

33 W, State St., 9th Floor
PO Box 230

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0230

EXHIBITA
MANDATORY EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY LANGUAGE
N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 et seq, (P.L. 1975, C, 127)
N.JAC. 17:27
GO0DS, PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AND GENERAL SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the performance of this contract, the congracior agrees as fuflows:

The contractor ar subcontractor, where applicable, wilf not discriminates against any employee or applicant far employment
because of age, race, creed, color, natlanal origin, ancestry, marita status, affectional or sexual orlentation, gender Identity
or expression, disability, nationality or sex, Except with respect to affectional or sexual orientation and gender Identity or
expresslon, the contractor will ensure that equal employment opportunity Is afforded to such applicants in recruitment and
employment, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, color, national
origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orlentation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex.
Such equal employment opportunity shall Include, but not be limited to the following: amployment, upgrading, demotion, or
transfer; recruitment or recrultment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and
selection for training, Including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post In conspicuous places, available to employees
and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Public Agency Compllance Officer setting forth provisions of this
nondiscrimination clause.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable will, [n all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the contractor, state that all qualifled applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to age,
race, creed, cofor, national orlgin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression,
disabllity, nationality or sex,

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will send to each labor union or representative or workers with which it
has a coliective bargalning agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the agency contracting
officer advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under thls act and shall post
coples of the natlce In consplcuous places available to emplayees and applicants for employment,

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, agrees to comply with any regulations promulgated by the Treasurer
pursuant to N.J,S.A. 10:5-31 et seq., as amended and supplemented from time to time and the Americans with Disabilities
Act.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to make good faith efforts to afford equal employmerit opportunities to minority and
women workers consistent with Good falth efforts to meet targeted county employment goals established in accordance with
N.J.A.C, 17:27-5.2, or Good faith efforts to meet targeted county employment goals determined by the Division, pursuant to
N.J.AC. 17:27-5.2.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to inform in writing Its appropriate recruitment agencles Including, but not limited to,
employment agencies, placement bureaus, colleges, universities, labor unions, that it does not discriminate on the basis of
age, creed, calor, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender Identity or expression,
disability, nationality or sex, and that It will discontinue the use of any recrultment agency which engages in direct ar indirect
discriminatory practices, )

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to rgvige ajvy of its té.s,ti‘,nxg ‘progédutes, If necessary, to assure that alt personne!
testing conforms with the principles of job-ielatéd testing, as establistied by thé statutes and court decisions of the State of
New Jersey and as establlshed by applicable Federal law and applicable Federal court decisions,

In conforming with the targeted employment goals, the contractor or 'subcontractor agrees to review all procedures relating
to transfer, upgrading, downgrading and layoff to ensure that all such actions are taken without regard to age, creed, color,
national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orlentation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality
or sex, consistent with the statutes and court declsions of the State of New Jersey, and applicable Federal law and applicable
Federal court declsions.

The contractor shall submit to the public agency, after notification of award but prior to execution of a goods and services
contract, ope of the following three documents:

Letter of Federal Affirmative Action Plan Approval
Certificate of Employee Information Report
Employee Information Repoit Form AABOZ

The contractor and its subcontractors shall furnish such reports or other documents to the Division of Public Contracts Equal
Employment Opportunity Compliance as may be requested by the office from time to time in order to carry out the purposes
of these regulations, and public agencies shall furnish such Information as may be requested by the Diviston of Public
Contracts Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance for conducting a compliance investigation pursuant to Subchapter 10
of the Administrative Coda st N,JLAC, 17:27.

* NO FIRM MAY BE ISSUED A PURCHASE ORDER OR CONTRACT WITH THE STATE UNLESS THEY COMPLY WITH THE
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REGULATIONS

PLEASE CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX (ONE ONLY)

I HAVE A CURRENT NEW JERSEY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION CERTIFICATE, (PLEASE ATTACH A COPY TO YOUR PROPOSAL).
[T] 1 HAVE A VALID FEDERAL AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN APPROVAL LETTER, (PLEASE ATTACH A COPY TO YOUR PROPOSAL).
[J 1 HAVE COMPLETED THE ENCLOSED FORM,AA30Z AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYEE INFORMATION REPORT,

T F > T



- Certification 44652
CEHTIFICATE OF EMPLOYEE lNFORMATION REPORT

This is to certify that the contractor listed béﬁ w fias submiitted 2 an /;EJ lqyee Information Report pursuant to
N.LA.C. 17:27-1.1 et. seq. and the Stafg Weasurer has approved squ& e Eon This approval will remain in
effect for the period of 15 ;ﬁ‘m 10 15 -2013

708 COLFAX AVE
KENILWORTH

Andrew P. Sidamon-Eristoff
State Treasurer



New Jersey Sports & Exposition Authority

New Jersey Business Registration Certificate {BRC)

Pursuant fo NJSA 52:32-44 (as amended by P.L. 2004, ¢. 57) all businesses must obtain a
Business Registration Certificate (BRC) from the Department of the Treasury, Division of
Revenue prior to conducting business in the State of New Jersey. State and local entities are
prohibited from entering into a contract with an entity unless the contractor has provided a copy of
its BRC (or interim registration) as part of'its bid submission.

Certificates must be submitted with each bid or proposal, even if it is already on file with the
local contracting agency.

Information regarding the Business Registration of Public Contractors is provided at the Division
of Local Government Services Frequently Asked Questions at website link:

(http://www.state.nj.us/dca/lgs/fags/busregis/business registration fag.html] - 5)




New Jersey Sports & Exposition Authority

STATE OF NEW JERSEY) :
COUNTY OF UNiON ) .
1 Paul Savage the Regional Vice President

of

President or Vice President, Owner or Partner
ABM Janitorial Services Northeast, Inc _ (Company) being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

That the _ABM (Company) wishes to bid on Cleaning Bid 201X Contract) with the New Jersey Sports and
Exposition Authority on _August 23. 2012

Date
That __ABM (Company) wishes to demonstrate moral integrity to the satisfaction of

the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority.

That, as of the date of signing this Affidavit, neither the ABM (Company), nor any of iis
owners, officers, or directors are involved in any Federal, State, or Governmental investigations concerning
criminal or quasi-criminal violations, except as follows: (if none, so state.)

None

That neither the Company nor any of Lits owners, officers, directors have ever committed any violation of
Federal or State criminal or quasi-criminal statute, except as follows: (If none, so state.)
None

That the State of Incorporation of the Company is __California
State
That the names, and dates of birth of the principals, shareholders, and officers of the Company are as follows:
Henrik Slipsager, CEQ, 56; James Lusk, CFO. 55; James McClure, President-Janitorial, 54
Tracy Price, President-Engineering, 53: Angelique Carbo, SVP: Dean Chin, CAQ. 43
David Farwell, SVP, 50: Sarah McConnell. General Counsel, 47

That he is personally acquainted with the operations of the Company, has full knowledge of the factual basis
comprising the contents of this Affidavit, and that the contents are true.

That this Affidavit is made to induce the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority to accept bid on
Cleaning Bid 2012 (Contract) knowing that the said New Jersey Sports and Exposition
Authority relies upon the truth of the statements contained herein.

Sworn and subscribed to before me ABM Ianitorial Services Northeast, Inc.

This A% dayof Ausyst 2012 .

By:

N

Company

/ut ori ignature \)@y Public




New Jersey Sports & Exposition Authority

.+ NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF NEW JERSEY )

: SS.:
COUNTY OF ynioN )
I Paul Savage of the City of Kenilworth , in the County
of Union and the State of New Jersey of full age, being duly

sworn according to law on my oath depose and say that:

Iam Regional Vice President of the firm of ABM Janitorial Services , the Vendor
making the Bid for the above-named project, and that I executed the said Bid with full authority so to
do; that said Vendor has not, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any
collusion or otherwise taken any action, in restraint of free, competition in connection with the above
named project; and that all statements contained in said Bid and in this affidavit are true and correct, and
made will full knowledge that the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority relies upon the truth of
the statements contained in said Bid, in this affidavit and in any statements contained in the Bid, in this
affidavit and in any statements requested by the Authority showing evidence of qualifications in
awarding the contract for the said Project.

1 further warrant that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure such
contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent
fee, except bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by

ABM Janitorial Services Northeast, Inc.
Name of Contractor

Subscribed and sworn to -
Before me this day Q&“‘ e ey v e

of W L 20 \o

. [
Also type or print name of affidavit under signature

W Paul Savage, Regional Vice President

Notary Pubfiedf NS

My Commission Expires bl 2015




New Jersey Sports & Exposition Authority

H

Lo e STOCKHOLDER DISCLOSURE FORM.

NAME ABM Janitorial Services Northeast, Inc

ADDRESS 708 W. Colfax Avenue, Suite B

CITY & STATE Kenilworth, NJ

In the spaces provided, list the names and addresses of all owners, partners, directors, officers, and
indirect owners owning 10% or more interest in the Bidder's firm, If corporate owner, list in the space
provided stockholders or corporation whose ownership through the corporation is 10% or more of the
Bidder, Complete affidavit at bottom of form. If this has already been submitted to the New Jersey
Sports and Exposition Authority, use the form for any changes and complete the affidavit. '

Name Address Street City/Twp. County State  Zip
N/A N/A
President of the firm (print or type) Phone

I certify that:

LJ  List of stockholders names and addresses has been submitted to the New Jersey Sports and
Exposition Authority and it is current to the best of my knowledge, with the exceptions as listed
above.

The list of stockholders above is current and correct to the best of my knowledge.

There are no stockholders holding 10% or more interest in this corporation or firm to the best of my
knowledge.

Signature of Authorized Representative =7 M
.
Type or Print Name ___Paul Savage Title Regional Vice President

Witnessed by W Date August 23 2012




New Jersey Sports & Exposition Authority

Firm Name: ___ ABM Janitorial Services Federal LD. No. 20-0928900
Address: 108 W, Colfax Avenue Suite B
Kenitworth NI 37033

INSTRUCTIONS: List below the names, home addresses, dates of birth, social security numbers, offices held
and ownership interest of all officers and all individuals, partnerships, corporations or any other owner with
10% or more interest in the firm named All questions must be answered, If more space is needed, list on
attached sheet.

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS BELOW

et
=
7

3

Within the past five years has the firm identified above been owned by another company or
corporation?

(If Yes, complete a separate disclosure form for the previous owner.)

Has any person or entity listed in thi¥’ form ever béen arrested, charged, indicted or convicted of a
crime by the State of New Jersey, anyothéf 'State o thie ¥S Government?

(f Yes, attach a detailed explanation for each instance)

Has any person or entity listed in this form ever been suspended, debarred or otherwise declared
ineligible by any Agency of Government from bidding or contracting to provide services, labor,
material or supplies? (If Yes, attach a detailed explanation for each instance)

Are there now any administrative, civil or criminal matters pending in which the firm or its
responsible employees are involved? (If Yes, attach a detailed explanation for each instance)

Has any federal, state, or local government license, permit or other similar authorization
necessary to perform the work applied for herein and held or applied for by any person or entity
listed in this form been suspended or revoked, or is it the subject of any pending procedures,
specifically seeking or litigating the issue of suspension or revocation?

(If. Yes,, attach a detailed explanation for each instance).

Has any person or entity listed in this form or its attachments been subject to any administrative
consent order or judgment or any civil penalty or fine by any licensing or regulatory agency of
government for an infraction related to the work of the same nature applied for herein. (If yes,
attach a detailed explanation for each instance).

Has any person or entity listed in this form or its attachments been party to civil litigation of any | []
type relating in any way to the work applied for herein. (If yes, attach a detailed explanation for
each instance).

1

<]

o4O 0o O U
<]

i

L]
=




New Jersey Sports & Exposition Authority

CERTIFICATION

1, being duly sworn upon my oath, hereby represent and state that the foregoing information and any
attachments thereto to the best of my knowledge are true and complete. I acknowledge that the New
Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority is relying on the information contzined herein and thereby
acknowledge that T am under a continuing obligation from the date of this certification through the
completion of any contracts with the Authority to notify the Authority in writing of any changes to the
answers or information contained herein. 1 acknowledge that 1 am aware that it is a criminal offense to
make a false statement or misrepresentation in this certification, and if I do so, I recognize that I am
subject to criminal prosecution under the law and that it will also constitute a material breach of my
agreements(s) with the Authority and that the Authority at its option, may declare any contract(s)

resulting from this certification void and unenforceable,

1, being duly authorized, certified that the information supplied above, including all attached pages, is
complete and correct to the best of my knowledge.

ATTESTED: Sworn and subscribed to before me Signature 4/ __—\—DPuateAlgust 23, 2012
e >
Onthe_ 23 day of &8@& 20\ Name: Paul Savage,

Signature /W’(Q ,g- Title: Regional Vice President

N otary\Pt{QliZ}rc;t an Officer of the Firm)




Building Value

Lawsuits Against Others:

In the ordinary course of business, ABM has, on occasion, various claims and lawsuits against
third parties, primarity related to coliection of monies owed. The amount of information regarding
these matters is volurninous and, therefore, such information has not been included herein.
Information about specific matters is available upon request

Contract Termination Due to Default:

ABM does not track and is not specifically aware of any contract that has been terminated for
default; however because ABM has been in business for over 100 years and has been party to
literally hundreds of thousands of customer agreements, it is possible and even likely that ABM
has been terminated by a customer citing default or dissatisfaction as the grounds for the
termination. To the extent that such terminations have occurred over the years, ABM believes
that such situations were isolated or specifically explainable.

www.abm.com NYSE Symbol: ABM



PB-AAF.1 R5/26/09
State of New Jersey
Division of Public Contracts Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance
EMPLOYEE INFORMATION REPORT

IMPORTANT- READ INSTRUCTIONS ON BACK OF FORM CAREFULLY BEFORE COMPLETING FORM, TYPE OR PRINT IN SHARP BALLPOINT
PEN. FAILURE TO PROPERLY COMPLETE THE ENTIRE FORM AND SUBMIT THE REQUIRED $150,00 FEE MAY DELAY ISSUANCE OF YOUR
CERTIFICATE, DO NOT SUBMIT EEQ-1 REPORT FOR SECTION B, ITEM 11,

SECTION A - COMPANY IDENTIFICATION

3, FID, NO. OR SOCIAL SECURITY 2. TYPE OF BUSINESS 3. TOTAL NO. OF EMPLOYEES IN THE ENTIRE COMPANY,
{1 mee [J2 service  [[] 3. wHoLesALE
[7] 4 RETAIL 5. DTHER

4. COMPANY NAME

5. STREET : ‘ iy COUNTE TSTATE | 2 CODE
6. NAME OF PARENT OR AFFILIATED COMPANY (1F NONE, 5O INDICATE) oy STKTE  ZIP CODE
7. CHECK ONE: 15 THE COMPANY: [(JsmicLe-ESTABLISHMENT EMPLOYER [JMULTI-ESTABLISHMENT EMPLOYER

SLEEST) T ;

8. IF MULTI-ESTABLISHMENT EMPLOYER, STATE THE NUMBER OF ESTABLISHMENTS TN NJ

9. TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT ESTABLISHMENT WHICH HAS BEEN AWARDED THE CONTRACT

10, PUBLIC AGENCY AWARDING CONTRACT ciTy COUNTY STATE 21 CODE

Officinl Use Only DATE RECEIVED INAUG DATE ASSIGNED CERTIFICATION NUMBER

SECTION B - EMPLOYMENT DATA

11. Report all permanent, temporary and part-time employees ON YOUR OWN PAYROLL. Enter the appropriate figures on all lines and in all columns,
whera thare are no employees In a particular category, enter a Zero, Include ALL employees, not just those in minority/non-minority categories, in columns
1, 2, &3. DO NOT SUBMIT AN EEQ-1 REPORT.

PERMANENT MINORITY/NON-MINCRITY EMPLOYEE BREAKDOWN

All Employees

0B MALE GRS R FEMALE
Categaries Totet  }COL, 2 | COL. 3 Amer, ‘ Amer.
(Cols. 28 3)} MALE JFEMALE] Black ] Hispanic| Indian | Asten |Nonmin| Black | Rispanic| Indisn | Aslan | Non Min
Officials/Managers
Prof \
Technicians

Salas Workers

Office & Clerical
Craftworkers
{Skitled)
Operatives
{Semi-Sikiiled}
Laborers . PR W A N
{Unskilled) | I WA I

Sarvice Workers

Total
Total employment
From previous
Report {If any)

remporary & part The data below shall NOT be Included In the figures for the appropriate categories above,

Time Employees | l ] l I l ] I I ] l
12. HOW WAS INFORMATION AS TO RACE OR ETHNIC GROUP IN SECTION B OBTAINED? 14,15 THIS THE FIRST 15, IF NO, DATE LAST
Employee Information REPORT SUBMITTED

Report Submitted?

13. DATES OF PAYROLL PERIOD USED

FROM; TO! Oves [JNO
SECTION C -~ SIGNATURE AND INDENTIFICATION
16. NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM (Print or Type) SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
17. ADORESS NO, 8 STREET crry COUNTY STATE  ZIP CODE  PHONE, AREA CODE, NO.

1 certify that the Information en this form is true an correct,



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE
EMPLOYEE. INFORMATION REPORT (FORM AA302)

IMPORTANT: READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY BEFORE COMPLETING THE FORM. PRINT
OR TYPE ALL INFORMATION FAILURE TO PROPERLY COMPLETE THE ENTIRE FORM AN.D_IQ_S!!B_M_IIIB.E

HAVE A CURRENT CERTIFICATE OF EMPLOYEE INFORMATION REPORT, DO NOT COMPLETE THIS
FORM UNLESS YOUR ARE RENEWING A CERTIFICATE THAT IS DUE FOR EXPIRATION. DO NOT
COMPLETE THIS FORM FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARDS,

ITEM 1 - Enter the Federal Identification Number assigned by ITEM 11 - Enter the appropriate figures on all lines and in all

the Internal Revenue Service, or If a Federal Employer

columns, THIS SHALL ONLY INCLUDE EMPLOYMENT DATA

Identification Number has been applied for, or If your business FROM THE FACILITY THAT IS BEING AWARDED THE

is such that you have not or will not recelve a Federal
Employer Identification Nurmiber, enter the Sodal Security
Number of the owner or of one partner, In the tase of a
partnership.

LITEM 2 - Check the box appropriate to your TYPE OF
BUSINESS. If you are engaged in more than one type of
business check the predominate one. If you are a
manufacturer deriving more than 50% of your receipts from
your own retail outlets, check "Retall".

ITEM 3 - Enter the total "number" of employees in the entire
company, including part-time employaes. This number shall
Include all facilities in the entire firm or corporation.

ITEM 4 - Enter the name by which the company is identified.
If there is more than one company name, enter the
predominate one,

ITEM 5 - Enter the physical location of the company. Include
City, County, State and Zip Code.

ITEM 6 - Enter the name of any parent of affnlated company‘
including the City, County, State and Zip Code. If there is
none, so indicate by entering "None" or N/A,

CONRTRACT, PO NOT st the same employee In more than one
it category., B0 NOY attach an ERO-§ Report,

Kaclal/Ethnic Greupe will be deflined:

Blacka Not of Hispanic origin. Persons having orlgin In any of
the Black racial graups of Africa.

Hispanic: Persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, or
Central or South American or other Spanish culture or origin,
regardless of race,

American Xndian or Alaskan Native: Persons having origins
in any of the original peoples of North Amerlca, and who
maintaln cultural identification through tribal affifiation or
community recognition.

Asian or Pacific Islander: Persons having origin In any of
the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the
Indian Sub-continent or the Pacific lslands. This area Includes
for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Phillippine Islands and
Samoa.

Non-Minority: Any Persons not identified in any of the
aforementioned Raclal/Ethnic Groups.

CYTEM 12 - ChecK the appropriate box. If the race or ethnic

group Information was not obtained by 1 or 2, specify by what
other means this was done In 3.

ITEM 13 - Enter the dates of the payroll period used to

ITEM 7 - Check the box appropriate to your type of company prepare the employment data presented in Item 12,

establishment. "Single-establishment Employer” shall include

an employer whose business Is conducted at only one physical ITEM 14 - Jf this Is the first time an Employee Information

location. "Multi-establishment Employer" shall include an
employer whose business is conducted at more than one
location,

ITEM 8 - If "Multi-establishment” was entered In item 8,
enter the number of establishments within the State of New
Jersey.

ITEM 9 - Enter the total humber of employees at the
establishment being awarded the contract.

Report has been submitted for this company, check block
"Yes",

ITEM 15 - If the answer to Item 15 is "No", enter the date
when the last Employee Information Report was submitted by
this company.

ITEM 16 - Print or type the name of the person completing
the form. Include the signature, title and date. .

ITEM 17 - Enter the physical location where the form Is belng

ITEM 10 - Enter the name of the Public Agency awarding the completed, Include City, State, Zip Code and Phone Number.

contract, Include City, County, State and Zip Code. This is
not applicable if you are renewing a current Certificate.

TYPE OR PRINT IN SHARP BALL POINT PEN
THE VENDOR IS TO COMPLETE THE EMPLOYEE INFORMATION REPORT FORM (AA302) AND RETAIN A COPY FOR THE
VENDOR'S OWN FILES, THE VENDOR SHOULD ALSO SUBMIT A COPY TO THE PUBLIC AGENCY AWARDING THE CONTRACT IF

THIS IS YOUR FIRST REPORT; AND FORWARD ONE COPY

T0:

NJ Department of the Treasury
. Division of Public Contracts
Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance
P.O. Box 206

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0206

Telephone No. {609) 292-5473

R A WY
L



[ Public Law 2005, Chapter 51 ]
{formerly Executive Order 134) and Executive Order 117 (2008)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS
For Completing The “Two- Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure of Political
Contributions” Forms

Bachground Information

On September 22, 2004, then-Governor James E. McGreevey issued Executive Order 134, the purpose of which was fo
insulate the negofiation and award of State contracts from political contributions that posed a risk of improper influence,
purchase of access or the appearance thereof. To this end, Executive Order 134 prohibited State departments, agencies
and authorities from entering into contracts exceeding $17,500 with Individuals or entities that made centain political
contributions, Executive Order 134 was superseded by Public Law 2005, ¢. 51, sighed into law on March 22, 2005
("Chapter 51").

On September 24, 2008, Governor Jon S. Corzine issued Executive Order No. 117 (‘E.O. 117"), which is designed to

enhance New Jersey's efforts to protect the integrity of procurement decisions and increase the public’s confidence in
government. The Executive Order builds upon the provisions of Chapter 51.

Two-Year Certification Process

Upon approval by the State, the Certification and Disclosure of Political Contributions form (CH51.1R1/21/2009) Is valid
for a two (2) year period. Thus, if a vendor receives approval on Jan 1, 2009, the cerfification expiration date would be
Dec 31, 2011. Any change in the vendor's ownership status and/or political contributions during the two-year period will
require the submission of new Chapter 51/EO117 forms to the State Review Unit. Please note that it is the vendor's
responsibility to file new forms with the State should these changes occur.

Prior to the awarding of a contract, the agency should first send an e-mail to CD134@treas.state.nj.us fo verify the
certification status of the vendor. If the response is that the vendor is NOT within an approved two-year period, then
forms must be obtained from the vendor and forwarded for review. If the response is that the vendor is within an
approved two-year period, then the response so stating should be placed with the bid/contract documentation for the
subject project.

Instructions for Completing the Forms

NOTE: Please refer to the next section, "Useful Definitions for Purposes of Ch. 51 and E.O. 117," for guidance when
completing the forms.

Part 1: VENDOR INFORMATION
Business Name — Enter the full name of the Vendor, including trade name if applicable.
Business Type -- Select the vendor's business organization from the list provided.

Address, City, State, Zip and Phone Number - Enter the vendor's streef address, city, state, zip code and telephone
number.

Vendor Email ~ Enter the vendor's primary email address.

Vendor FEIN - Please enter the vendor's Federal Employment Identification Number,

DPP ¢51 - C&D, Rev. 11-17-2008 Page 1 of 4



| Public Law 2005, Chapter 51

(formerly Executive Order 134) and Executive Order 117 (2008)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS
For Completing The “Two- Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure of Political
Contributions” Forms

Part 2: PUBLIC LAW 2005, Chapter 51/ EXECUTIVE ORDER 117 (2008) DUAL
CERTIFICATION

Read the following statements and verify that from the period beginning on or after October 15, 2004, no contributions as
set forth at subsections 1{a)-(c) have been made by either the vendor or any individual whose confributions are
attributable to the vendor pursuant to Executive Order 117 (2008).

NOTE: Contributions made prior to November 18, 2008 are applicable to Chapter 51 only.

Part 3: DISCLOSURE OF CONTRIBUTIONS MADE

Check the box at top of page 2 If no reportable contributions have been made by the vendor. If the
vendor has no contributions to report, this box must be checked.

Name of Recipient Entity — Enter the full name of the recipient entity.

Address of Recipient Entity — Enter the recipient entity’s street address.

Date of Contribution — Indicate the date of the contribution.

Amount of Contribution — Enter the amount of fhe reportable contribution.

Type of Contribution — Select the type of contribution from the list provided.

Contributor Name — Enter the full name of the contributor.

Relationship of Contributor to the Vendor -- Indicate relationship of the contributor to the vendor, e.g. officer or partner
of the company, spouse of officer or pariner, resident child of officer or partner, parent company of the vendor, subsidiary
of the vendor, etc.

NOTE: If form is being completed electronically, click "Add a Contribution" to enter additional contributions. Otherwise,
please attach additional pages as necessary.

Part 4: CERTIFICATION

Check box A if the person completing the certification and disclosure is doing so on behalf of the vendor and all
Individuals and/or entities whose contributions are attributable to the vendor.

Check box B if the person compieting the certification and disclosure Is doing so on behalf of the vendor only.

Check box C if the person completing the certification and disclosure is doing so on behalf of an individual and/or entity
whose contributions are attributable to the vendor.

Enter the full name of the person authorized to complete the certification and disclosure, the person’s title or position, date
and telephone number.

DPP c51 - C&D, Rev. 11-17-2008 Page 2 of 4



[Public Law 2005, Chapter 51

{formerly Executive Order 134) and Executive Order 117 (2008)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS
For Completing The “Two- Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure of Political
Contributions” Forms

USEFUL DEFINITIONS FOR THE PURPOSES OF Ch. 51 and E.O. 117

+ "endor” means fhe contracting entity.

o “Business Entity” means any natural or legal person, business corporation, professional services corporation,
limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, business trust, association or any other legal
commercial entity organized under the laws of New Jersey or any other state or foreign jurisdiction. The definition
also includes (i) if a business entity is a for-profit corporation, any officer of the corporation and any other person
or business entity that owns or controls 10% or more of the stock of the corporation; (if) if a business entity is a
professional corporation, any shareholder or officer; (iii) if a business entity is a general parinership, limited
partnership or limited fiability partnership, any partner; (iv) if a business entity is a sole proprietorship, the
propristor; (v) if the business entity is any other form of entity organized under the laws of New Jersey or any
other state or foreign jurisdiction, any principal, officer or partner thereof; (vi) any subsidiaries directly or indirectly
controlled by the business entity; (vii) any political organization organized under 26 U.S.C.A. § 527 that is directly
or indirectly controlled by the business entity, other than a candidate committee, election fund, or political party
committee; and (viii) with respect to an individual who is included within the definition of “business entity,” that
individual’s spouse or civil union partner and any child residing with that person.

« “Officer” means a president, vice-president with senior management responsibility, secretary, treasurer, chief
executive officer, or chief financial officer of a corporation or any person routinely performing such functions for a
corporation. Please note that officers of non-profit entities are excluded from this definition,

« “Partner” means one of two or more natural persons or other entities, including a corporation, who or which are
joint owners of and carry on a business for profit, and which business is organized under the laws of this State or
any other state or foreign jurisdiction, as a general partnership, fimited partnership, limited liability partnership,
limited liability company, limited partnership association, or other such form of business organization.

» ‘'Reportabie Contributions” are those contributions, including in-kind contributions, in excess of $300.00 in the
aggregate per election made to or received by a candidate committee, joint candidates committee, or political
committee; or per calendar year made to or received by a political party committee, legislative leadership
committee, or continuing political committee,

« “In-kind Contribution” means a contribution of goods or services received by a candidate commiltee, joint
candidates committee, political committee, continuing political committee, political party committee, or legislative
leadership committee, which contribution is paid for by a person or entity other than the recipient committee, but
does not include services provided without compensation by an individual volunteering a part of or all of his or her
time on behalf of a candidate or committee.

¢ “Continuing Political Committee” includes any group of two or more persons acting jointly, or any corporation,
partnership, or any other incorporated or unincorporated association, including a political club, political action
committee, civic association or other organization, which in any calendar year contributes or expects to contribute
at least $4,300 to aid or promote the candidacy of an individual, or the candidacles of individuals, for elective
public office, or the passage or defeat of a public questions, and which may be expected to make contributions
toward such ald or promotion or passage or defeat during a subsequent election, provided that the group,
corporation, partnership, association or other organization has been determined by the Commission to be a
continuing political committee in accordance with N.J.S.A. 19:44A-B(b).

1 contributions made by a spouse, civil union partner or resident child to a candidate for whom the
contributor is eligible to vote or to a political party committee within whose jurisdiction the contributor
resides are permitted,
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[ Public Law 2005, Chapter 51 ‘ ]
(formerly Executive Order 134) and Executive Order 117 (2008)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS
For Completing The “Two- Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure of Political
Contributions” Forms

+ “Candidate Committee” means a committee established by & candidate pursuant to N.J.S.A, 19:44A-8fa}, for
the purpose of receiving coniributions and making expenditures. f

* “State Political Party Committee” means a committee organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-4,

« “County Political Party Committee” means a commiftee organized pursuant to N.J.S.A, 19:5-3.

* “Municipal Political Party Committes” means a committee organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-2.

s ‘“Legislative Leadership Committee’” means a committee established, authorized fo be sstablished, or
designated by the President of the Senate, the Minority Leader of the Senate, the Speaker of the General
Assembly, or the Minority Leader of the General Assembly pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-10.1 for the purpose of
receiving contributions and making expenditures.

o “Political Party Committee’” means:

1. The State committee of a political party, as organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-4;
2. Any county committee of a political party, as organized pursuant to N.J.8.A. 19:5-3; or
3. Any municipal committee of a political party, as organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-2,

Agency Submission of Forms
The agency should submit the completed and signed Two-Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure forms, together with a
completed Ownership Disclosure form, either electronically to cd134@treas state.nj.us or regular mail at Chapter 51
Review Unit, P.O. Box 039, 33 West State Street, 8™ Floor, Trenton, NJ 08625. Original forms should remain with the
Agency and copies should be sent to the Chapter 51 Review Unit.

Questions & Answers
Questions regarding the interpretation or application of Public Law 2005, Chapter 51 (N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.13) or Executive
Order 117 (2008) may be submitted electronically through the Division of Purchase and Property website at

http://www.state.nj. usftreasury/purchase/execorder{34.htm. Responses to previous questions are posted on the website,

as well as additional reference materials and forms.

NOTE: The Chapter 51 Q&A on the website DOES NOT address the expanded pay-to-play requirements imposed by
Executive Order 117. The Chapter 51 Q&A are only applicable to contributions made prior fo November 15, 2008, There
is a separate, combined Chapter §1/E.0. 117 Q&A section dealing specifically with issues pertaining to contributions
made after November 15, 2008, available at hitp.//www . state. | us/treasury/purchase/execorder134.himiistate.
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